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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 30
th

Annual General Meeting of the members of Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited will be held 

on Tuesday 30th September 2025 through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) / Other Audio-Visual Means (‘OAVM’) at 03:00 p.m. to 

transact the following business(es): 

 

Ordinary Business: 

 

ITEM NO. 1: ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025 including 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended 

on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

ITEM NO. 2: RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. MUNISH CHAWLA AS A DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY 

ROTATION 

 

To Re-appoint Mr. Munish Chawla, as Director of the Company, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment. 

 

ITEM NO. 3: APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITOR  

 

To appoint Statutory Auditor of the Company and to fix their remuneration and if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 142 of the Companies Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, 2013 as amended from time to time or any other law for the time being in force 

(including any statutory modification or amendment thereto or enactment thereof for the time being in force), upon the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee, M/s BB & associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.023670N) be and 

is hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period of 5 years commencing the conclusion of the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 35th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year of 2030 at such remuneration 

and terms and conditions mentioned in the Explanatory Statement.” 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to this resolution 

and to file necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies.” 

 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

ITEM NO. 4: APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITOR TO FILL CASUAL VACANCY 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
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"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8), 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors Rules), 2014 (the Rules), including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 

being in force and pursuant to the recommendation made by the Board of Directors through resolution passed on September 05, 

2025, BB & associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 023670N), be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountant 

(FRN: 103523W/ W100048), who will hold the office from September 05,2025, until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined 

and recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Company and/ or provided in explanatory statement." 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director/Key Managerial Personnel be and is hereby severally authorized to do all acts, 

deeds, matters and things as considered necessary and execute all necessary documents, applications and returns for the purpose 

of giving effect to the aforesaid resolutions. 

 

ITEM NO. 5 APPOINTMENT OF M/S. SWATI BHATTT & CO., PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES, AS 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, Regulation 24A of the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and subject to all the applicable laws, regulations, 

notifications, circulars issued in this behalf from time to time and basis the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board 

of Directors of the Company, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for appointment of M/s. Swati 

Bhattt & Co., , Practicing Company Secretaries (Firm Registration No. 8004) (Peer Review Certificate No. 2448/2022), as the 

Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five (5) consecutive years commencing from Financial Year 2025-26 to Financial 

Year 2029-30 on such remuneration plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be approved by the 

Board of Directors of the Company and/ or detailed in explanatory statement. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 

things as may be necessary, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and to settle any question 

or difficulty in connection herewith and incidental hereto.” 

 

ITEM NO.6 APPROVAL OF CHANGE IN DESIGNATION OF MR. ROBIN CHAWLA (DIN: 10277507) FROM 

DIRECTOR & CFO, TO NON-EXECUTIVE NON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 

Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and rules framed thereunder and the applicable provisions of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the 'Listing Regulations') 
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(including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the Articles of Association of the 

Company, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of 

the Company, consent of members be and is hereby accorded to designate Mr. Robin Chawla (DIN: 10277507) existing 

Executive Director  of the Company as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director with immediate effect, whose office shall 

be liable to retire by rotation. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 

things as may be necessary, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and to settle any question 

or difficulty in connection herewith and incidental hereto.” 

 

ITEM NO.7. APPOINTMENT OF MR. KUNDAN KUMAR MISHRA AS A DIRECTOR 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013 (‘Act’), the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’) and Regulation 17(1C) of 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 

Regulations’), including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, Mr. Kundan Kumar 

Mishra (DIN: 09325521) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with effect 

from July 15, 202 and meets the criteria for Independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and 

Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations and in respect of whom the Company has received a Notice in writing under 

Section 160 of the Act, from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director, and who is eligible for 

appointment as an Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the company not liable to 

retire by rotation for a term of 3 (Three) consecutive years commencing from July 15, 2025. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 

things as may be necessary, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and to settle any question 

or difficulty in connection herewith and incidental hereto.” 

 

ITEM NO.8. APPOINTMENT OF MS. SNEH CHAUHAN AS A DIRECTOR 

 

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013 (‘Act’), the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’) and Regulation 17(1C) of 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 

Regulations’), including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, Ms. Sneh Chauhan 

(DIN: 11112308) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from July 

15, 202 and meets the criteria for Independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 

16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations and in respect of whom the Company has received a Notice in writing under Section 160 

of the Act, from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director, and who is eligible for appointment 
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as an Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the company not liable to retire by rotation 

for a term of 3 (Three) consecutive years commencing from July 15, 2025. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 

things as may be necessary, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and to settle any question 

or difficulty in connection herewith and incidental hereto.” 

 

ITEM NO.9. APPROVAL OF MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION WITH TEN ON TEN 

RUBTECH PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

To consider, and, if thought fit, approve the material related party transaction(s) proposed to be entered into by the Company 

during financial years 2025-26 and to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed thereunder 

(including any statutory amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, if any), and in terms of Regulation 

23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 

Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 

to the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), for entering into and / or carrying out and / or continuing with existing 

contracts / arrangements/ transactions or modification(s) of earlier/ arrangements/transactions or as fresh and independent 

transaction(s) or otherwise (whether individually or series of transaction(s) taken together or otherwise), with Ten on Ten 

Rubtech Private Limited, a related party of the Company, as per the details set out in the explanatory statement annexed to this 

notice, notwithstanding the fact that the aggregate value of all these transaction(s), whether undertaken directly by the Company 

or along with its subsidiary(ies), if any, may exceed the prescribed thresholds as per provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations 

as applicable from time to time, provided, however, that the said contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried out 

at an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby severally authorised to execute all such agreements, documents, 

instruments and writings as deemed necessary, with power to alter and vary the terms and conditions of such contracts / 

arrangements / transactions, settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 

 

ITEM NO.10. APPROVAL OF MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION WITH TEN ON TEN 

TYRES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

To consider, and, if thought fit, approve the material related party transaction(s) proposed to be entered into by the Company 

during financial years 2025-26 and to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed thereunder 

(including any statutory amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, if any), and in terms of Regulation 

23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 

Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 

to the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), for entering into and / or carrying out and / or continuing with existing 

contracts / arrangements/ transactions or modification(s) of earlier/ arrangements/transactions or as fresh and independent 
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transaction(s) or otherwise (whether individually or series of transaction(s) taken together or otherwise), with Ten on Ten  Tyres 

Private Limited, a related party of the Company, as per the details set out in the explanatory statement annexed to this notice, 

notwithstanding the fact that the aggregate value of all these transaction(s), whether undertaken directly by the Company or 

along with its subsidiary(ies), if any, may exceed the prescribed thresholds as per provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations 

as applicable from time to time, provided, however, that the said contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried out 

at an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby severally authorised to execute all such agreements, documents, 

instruments and writings as deemed necessary, with power to alter and vary the terms and conditions of such contracts / 

arrangements / transactions, settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 

 

ITEM NO.11.APPROVAL OF MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION WITH TEN ON TEN 

INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE LIMITED 

To consider, and, if thought fit, approve the material related party transaction(s) proposed to be entered into by the Company 

during financial years 2025-26 and to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed thereunder 

(including any statutory amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, if any), and in terms of Regulation 

23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 

Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 

to the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), for entering into and / or carrying out and / or continuing with existing 

contracts / arrangements/ transactions or modification(s) of earlier/ arrangements/transactions or as fresh and independent 

transaction(s) or otherwise (whether individually or series of transaction(s) taken together or otherwise), with Ten on Ten 

International Private Limited, a related party of the Company, as per the details set out in the explanatory statement annexed to 

this notice, notwithstanding the fact that the aggregate value of all these transaction(s), whether undertaken directly by the 

Company or along with its subsidiary(ies), if any, may exceed the prescribed thresholds as per provisions of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations as applicable from time to time, provided, however, that the said contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) shall 

be carried out at an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby severally authorised to execute all such agreements, documents, 

instruments and writings as deemed necessary, with power to alter and vary the terms and conditions of such contracts / 

arrangements / transactions, settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 

 

 

  

Place: Halol          By order of the Board of Directors 

Date: September 5, 2025           For Innovative Tyres &   Tubes Limited 

 

       Munish Chawla 

         DIN-06454015 

                                               Managing Director 



1 2 3 NOTICE STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

 

 

Registered Office: 

1201, 1202, 120 3, GIDC Halol, 

Panchmahal – 389350. 

CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579 

Website: www.innovativetyres.com 

E-mail: investors@innovativetyres.co.in Tel: 02676 -220621 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES:  

 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 09/2024 dated September 19, 

2024 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) has permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through 

Video Conferencing (‘VC’) / Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’), without the physical presence of the Members at a common 

venue. Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its circulars dated May 12, 2020, and subsequent 

circulars issued in this regard, the latest being October 3, 2024 (‘SEBI Circulars’) has provided certain relaxations from 

compliance with certain provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’). 

 

In compliance with aforesaid MCA Circulars and the Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 

2020, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2021, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated 13th May, 

2022, SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 5th January, 2023 and SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/167 dated 

7th October, 2023 issued by Securities Exchange Board of India (collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars”), the notice of the 

AGM along with the Annual Report 2024- 25 are being sent only by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses 

are registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the above said Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 will 

also be available on the Company’s website https://www.innovativetyres.com/, websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. National 

Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com, and on the website of MUFG Intime India Private Limited at 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in. In case any member is desirous of obtaining hard copy of the notice of the AGM along with 

the Annual Report 2024-25 of the Company, may send request to the Company’s email address at cs@innovativetyres.co.in 

mentioning Folio No./ DP ID and Client ID. 

 

Since this AGM is being held through VC/ OAVM, pursuant to MCA Circulars, physical attendance of the Members has been 

dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM. Hence 

the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map are not annexed to this Notice. 

 

Participation of members through VC/ OAVM will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per Section 103 of 

the Act. 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/
mailto:investors@innovativetyres.co.in
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Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall open 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM 

through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large 

Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 

Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM through 

VC / OAVM. Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to participate and vote at the meeting, are 

requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution / authorization letter to the Company or upload on the VC / OAVM 

portal / e-voting portal. 

 

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Act, and 

the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will 

be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM, based on the request being received on 

investors@innovativetyres.co.in. 

 

All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the members from the 

date of circulation of this Notice upto the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 

investors@ innovativetyres.co.in 

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, telephone/mobile 

numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the 

bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc. 

a) For shares held in electronic form: to their Depository Participants (DPs) 

b)  For shares held in physical form: to the Company/Share Transfer Agent (RTA) in prescribed Form ISR-1 and other forms 

pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/SECFATF/P/ CIR/2023/169 dated October 12, 2023. To mitigate unintended 

challenges on account of freezing of folios, SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/ CIR/2023/181 dated 

November 17, 2023, has done away with the provision regarding freezing of folios not having PAN, KYC, and Nomination 

details. Members may also refer the Company’s website www.innovativetyres.com to Announcements Section in Investor 

Relations page for SEBI directions and the download section on home page of said website for downloading of various forms 

to stay updated on such announcements. 

 

Contact details of Share Transfer Agent of the Company is as under: 

MUFG Intime India Private Limited, 

Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com 

Tel: +91 (022) – 4918 6000. 

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per 

the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice can be obtained for inspection by sending E-mail to Company on 

investors@ innovativetyres.co.in. Electronic copies of necessary statutory registers and auditors’ report/certificates will be 

mailto:investors@innovativetyres.co.in
http://www.in.mpms.mufg.com/
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available for inspection by the members at the time of AGM. 

Members desiring any information relating to the Accounts are requested to address their queries to the Registered Office of the 

Company at least seven days before the date of the AGM, to enable the management to keep the information ready. 

9. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any 

change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat 

account(s) dormant long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository 

Participant and holdings should be verified. 

10. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only 

in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition 

of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. 

Members can contact the Company or MUFG Intime India Private Limited, Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent 

for assistance in this regard. 

11. Consolidation of Shares under one folio The Company would urge shareholders holding shares of the Company under 

different folios to consolidate the shares under one folio. This would substantially reduce paperwork and transaction costs 

and benefit the shareholders and the Company. Shareholders can do so by writing to the Registrar with details on folio 

numbers, order of names, shares held under each folio, and the folio under which all shareholding should be 

consolidated. Share certificates need not be sent. 

12. Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses are requested to register the same with their Depository 

Participants (“DP”) in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with MUFG Intime India Private Limited in 

case the shares are held by them in physical form. For temporary registration of email for the purpose of receiving of this 

notice along with annual report for 2024-25 members may write to investors@ innovativetyres.co.in along with requisite 

proof of his/her membership.  

13. Voting through electronic means (Remote E-voting): 

i) In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment 

Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings 

(SS-2) issued by the institute of Company Secretaries of India, the Company is pleased to provide to its Members the 

facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 30th Annual General Meeting 

(AGM)by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting 

the votes by the Members using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote 

e-voting”) will be provided by Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL). 

ii) The remote e-voting period commences on 27th day of September, 2025 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on 29th day of 

September, 2025 (5:00p.m. IST). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical 

form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Tuesday, 23rd day of September 2025 may cast 

their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by LIIPL e-voting platform for voting 

thereafter. 

iii) The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on 23rd day of September, 

2025, being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. 

iv) The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not 

been titled to cast their vote again. 



 

 pg. 9 

v) The facility for e-voting at the AGM will be available and the Members attending the meeting who have not cast 

their vote by remote e-Voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through e-voting. 

vi) The Company has appointed Mrs. Swati Bhatt, Proprietor of M/s. Swati Bhatt & Co., Practising Company 

Secretaries as Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

vii) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the annual general meeting, would first unblock 

the e-voting at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least 

two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the company and make within a period not exceeding two (2) working 

days from the conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favor or 

against, if any and submit forth with to the Chairman of the Company or a person authorized by him in writing 

who shall countersign the same. 

viii) The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 

https://www.innovativetyres.com/ and on the website of LIIPL immediately after the result is declared. The 

Company shall simultaneously forward the results to National Stock Exchange (“NSE”), where the shares of the 

Company are listed. 

ix) The Resolution shall be deemed to be passed on the date of AGM i.e. 30th day of September, 2025, subject to 

receipt of sufficient votes. 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/
http://www.innovativetyres.com/
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Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders post change in the Login mechanism for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode, pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020: 

Pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode can vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories 

and Depository Participants only post 9th June, 2021. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts to access e-Voting 

facility. Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode/ physical mode is given below: 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode/ physical mode is given below: 

 
Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

with NSDL 

 If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website 
of NSDL. Open 
web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new 

screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. 

 After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on 

“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to 

e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices. nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ Ideas Direct Reg. jsp 

 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www. evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 

which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You 

will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you 

can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name 

and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

with CDSL 

 Existing user of who have opted for Easy / Easiest, they can login through their user 
id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 

The URL for users to login to Easy / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New 

System Myeasi. 

 After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting Menu. 

The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL, KARVY, LINK 

NTIME, CDSL. Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast your vote. 

 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/ myeasi./Registration/EasiRegistration 

 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
http://www/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 

demat Account. After successful authentication, user 
will be provided links for the respective ESP where the E Voting is in progress. 

IIndividual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities in 

demat mode) & login 

through their depository 

participants 

 You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

 Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Type of shareholders Login Method 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities in 

Physical mode & evoting 

service Provider is 

LINKINTIME. 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

 Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following 

details: - 

A. User ID: Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall 

provide Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company. 

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) 

(Members who have not updated their PAN with the Depository 

Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, 

if applicable. 

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As 

recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format) 

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as 

recorded with your DP/Company. 

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 

‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above 

 Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 

characters, at least one special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least 

one alphabet and at least one capital letter). 

 Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated). 

2. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

3. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on 

‘Submit’. 

4. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ 

icon. 

5. E-voting page will appear. 

6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 

‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View 

Resolution’ file link). 

7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, 

else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote. 

Institutional shareholders: 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-

voting system of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / 

Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority 

letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format 

in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode & evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME, have forgotten 

the password: 

o Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’ 

o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on ‘Submit’. 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
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 In case shareholders/ members is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 

address. 

 Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the 

particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) 

etc. as mentioned above. 

 The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@! #$&*), at least one 

numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL have forgotten the password: 

 Shareholders/ members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants’ website. 

 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 

keep your password confidential. 

 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on 

the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in demat mode have any technical issues related to login through 

Depository i.e. NSDL/ CDSL, they may contact the respective helpdesk given below: 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 

sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 

and 1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 

sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 or 22-23058542-43. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders & evoting service 

Provider is LINKINTIME 

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders have any queries regarding 

e-voting, they may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and InstaVote e-Voting manual available at 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or send an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 

022 –4918 6000. 

Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in 

> Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: - 

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. or Folio No 

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed 

by 8 Digit Client ID 

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the 

Company 

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their 

PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if 

applicable. 

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company. 

> Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting). 

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days in advance with the 

company mentioning their name, demat account no./folio no., email id, mobile no. at investors@innovativetyres.co.in 

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client. 

3. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting. 

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting. 

5. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and 

audio of your device. 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:enotices@linkintime.co.in
mailto:investors@innovativetyres.co.in
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NOTE: Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the 

name and serial number for speaking. 

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members who have 

not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 

1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote” 

2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered 

email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on ‘Submit’. 

3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against” for 

voting. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares (which 

represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against’. 

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on “Save”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click 

on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently. 

 

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through Insta Meet facility and have 

not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 

eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-

Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual General Meeting through 

Insta Meet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband for 

better experience. 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting 

via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is therefore recommended to 

use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to 

instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175. 

Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.: InstaMEET 

For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. InstaMEET, shareholders/ 

members who are registered as speakers for the event are requested to download and install the Webex application in 

advance by following the instructions as under: 

a) Please download and install the Webex application by clicking on the link https://www.webex.com/downloads.html/ 

or 

b) If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by following the process 

mentioned as under: Step 1: Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now. 

1 (A): If you have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting by clicking on Join Now 

mailto:instameet@linkintime.co.in
https://www.webex.com/downloads.html/
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1 (B): If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to either Add Webex to 

chrome or Run a temporary application. 

Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe file to run the application and 

join the meeting by clicking on Join Now. 

General Guidelines for Shareholders: 

I. A Member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-Voting but shall 

not be allowed to vote again at the AGM. 

II. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of Members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the 

depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e., 10th day of September, 2024, only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote 

e-Voting as well as e-Voting at the AGM. 

Institutional Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to e-

Voting system of LIIPL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian/ Mutual Fund / 

Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution / authority letter 

/ power of attorney, etc., together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized representative(s) in PDF 

format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

III. During the voting period, Shareholders can login any number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) for a 

particular “Event”. 

IV. Shareholders holding multiple folios / demat account shall choose the voting process separately for each of the folios / 

demat account. 

V. In case the Shareholders have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting, please refer the Frequently Asked Questions 

(FAQs) and Instavote e-Voting manual available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or write an 

email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or Call us: - Tel: +91 (022) – 4918 6000. 

VI. In case any member 

is desirous of obtaining hard copy of the notice of the 28th AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 of the 

Company, may send request to the Company’s email address at investors@ innovativetyres.co.in mentioning 

Folio No./ DP ID and Client ID. 

 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
mailto:enotices@linkintime.co.in
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PERSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Item no. 3 & 4:  

This is to inform the members that upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the 

Company at their meeting held on September 5, 2025 had appointed M/s. B.B. & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm 

Registration No.023670N), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation 

of M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants w.e.f. July 26, 2025, and they shall hold the office till the conclusion 

of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

After evaluating and considering various factors such as industry experience, competency of the audit team, efficiency in 

conduct of audit, independence, etc., the Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee, proposed the appointment of M/s. B.B. & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 023670N), for the first 

consecutive term of five years from the conclusion of ensuing 30th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 35th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2030, at a remuneration as may be mutually agreed between 

the Board and the Statutory Auditors and/ or provided here in this explanatory statement. 

Accordingly, shareholders’ approval by way of ordinary resolution is sought. M/s. B.B. & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants (Firm Registration No. 023670N), have conveyed their consent for being appointed as the Statutory Auditors 

of the Company along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made by the members, would be within the limits 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and shall satisfy the criteria as provided under section 141 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing of the resolution as an ordinary resolution.  

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons of the Company (including their relatives), except to the extent of their 

shareholding in the Company are concerned or interested in the said resolution.  

Details required to be provided as per Regulation 36(5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 in relation to the appointment of the Statutory Auditors is provided below: 

 

Proposed Fee payable to auditor The remuneration shall be modified as mutually agreed 

between the Board of Directors of the Company and the 

Auditor, as required form time to time.  

Material change in the fee payable to such auditor Considering the enhanced size of the operations of the 

Company, scope of services and experience, profile and 

caliber of the proposed Auditors, the fees is reasonable 

and is commensurate with the experience and scope of 

work. 

Brief Profile M/s BB & Associates, Chartered Accountants (“BBA”) 

is an energetic and passionate team of committed 

professionals displaying acumen, knowledge and 

excellence while rendering solution oriented consulting, 

advisory and implementation services in the fields of 

taxation, finance, law, regulation, risk advisory and 

business strategy. 

Combining unparalleled experience and comprehensive 
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capabilities across financial and regulatory matters, BBA 

collaborates with clients to help them become high-

performance and legally compliant businesses. 

BBA enhances value for clients by providing innovative 

solutions by blending domain expertise with analytical 

rigour, while maintaining an uncompromising focus on 

quality and by hiring and nurturing high quality 

professionals with a passion for excellence. 

 

Item no.5   

Pursuant to Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 9 

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, 

every listed company shall annex with its Board’s report made in terms of subsection (3) of section 134, a secretarial audit 

report, given by a company secretary in practice, in such form as may be prescribed. 

In addition to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

(Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated December 12, 2024 mandates that every listed entity and its material unlisted 

subsidiaries incorporated in India shall undertake Secretarial Audit by a Secretarial Auditor who shall be a Peer Reviewed 

Company Secretary and shall annex a Secretarial Audit Report in such form as specified, with the annual report of the listed 

entity. Besides, such appointment shall be approved by the Members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting. 

In compliance with the applicable laws and based on the recommendations of the Audit and Compliance Committee, the 

Board of Directors, at their meeting held on September 5, 2025, approved the appointment of M/s. Swati Bhattt & Co as 

the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five consecutive years commencing from FY 2025–26 to FY 2029–

30, subject to the approval of the Members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The appointment was 

recommended following a thorough evaluation of various proposals and key factors such as independence, industry 

experience, technical expertise and the quality of past audit reports. 

M/s. Swati Bhattt & Co is a reputed firm of practicing Company Secretaries registered with the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India (ICSI) having extensive experience in corporate governance, compliance, and secretarial audits. In 

accordance with Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing Regulations, the firm holds a valid certificate issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India. The firm has been providing professional services to listed companies and has a proven track 

record of maintaining high standards of governance and regulatory compliance. 

M/s. Swati Bhattt & Co have given their consent to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company confirming that 

they do not incur any disqualification specified under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD/CIR/P/2024/185 dated 

December 31, 2024 and that they shall not render any restricted services stated therein to the Company, its holding and 

subsidiary companies to ensure independence and avoid conflict of interest. 

The Board believes that appointment of M/s. Swati Bhattt & Co will provide an independent and expert evaluation of the 

Company’s corporate governance, regulatory compliance, and secretarial functions, thereby ensuring adherence to statutory 

requirements. 

The proposed remuneration to be paid to M/s. Swati Bhattt & Co for their Secretarial Audit services is Rs. 65,000 plus 

applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses for the first two financial years, and the remuneration for the subsequent year(s) 

of their term shall be as mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Secretarial Auditor. In 

addition to the Secretarial Audit, firm will also provide such other services in the nature of certifications and other 

professional work, as approved by the Board of Directors/ any person authorized in this behalf. 

In compliance with Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
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amended from time to time, consent of the Members is being sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution for the appointment 

of M/s. Swati Bhattt & Co as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at item No. 5 in the accompanying notice for approval by the 

members. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives are, in any way, 

concerned or interested, in the Resolution set out at item No.5 of the notice. 

 

Item no.6 

Mr. Robin Chawla was initially appointed as Non-Executive Director on dated August 9, 2023 then he was appointed as a 

CFO from November 10, 2023 and now Mr. Robin Chawla (DIN: 10277507) has relinquished the position of CFO with 

effect from the close of business hours on July 15, 2025. Subsequently, the Board of Directors of the Company, based on 

the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had appointed and designated Mr. Robin Chawla, as 

Director in the capacity of a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company with effect from September 5, 

2025. This proposes continuation of Mr. Robin Chawla as a Non-Executive Director in view of his extensive knowledge, 

professional expertise and valuable experience, which are considered highly beneficial to the Company. Having previously 

served in senior management and directorial capacities, Mr. Chawla has demonstrated strong commitment, strategic insight, 

and governance acumen. The Board is of the opinion that his continued association will contribute significantly to the 

Company’s growth, governance standards and long-term stakeholder value. 

  

The Company has also received from Mr. Robin Chawla, the consent to act as a Director of the Company along with a 

declaration to the effect that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act 

and has not been debarred or disqualified from being appointed as a Director of the Company by any Order of the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other Statutory Authority. 

 

As required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard-2, other requisite 

information is annexed hereto, and forms a part of this Notice. 

 

Except Mr. Robin Chawla who is said to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution. None of the other Directors 

and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, in any way, are concerned or interested, financially or 

otherwise in the said resolution, set out at item No. 6 of this notice. 

 

Item no.7 and 8  

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting held 

on July 15, 2025, appointed Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra and Ms. Sneh Chauhan as Additional Directors of the Company 

with effect from July 15, 2025 pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Article 

116 of the Articles of Association of the Company. At the same meeting, the Board of Directors also designated Mr. Kundan 

Kumar Mishra and Sneh Chauhan as an Non – Executive Independent Director of the Company not liable to retire by 

rotation, for a period of two years from July 15, 2025 to July 15, 2027, subject to approval by the Members of the Company.  

 

Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra and Ms. Sneh Chauhan have given declarations to the Board that they meet the criteria of 

independence as provided in the Act and the Listing Regulations. 
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Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra is a seasoned professional and a Commerce Graduate, proudly holding membership with the 

prestigious Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). With over 9 years of rich and diverse experience in the 

corporate and consulting domain, he has worked extensively across industry verticals, both in-house and in practice. 

 

His expertise spans across key areas of Corporate Law, Regulatory Compliance, Business Strategy, Risk Management, and 

Financial Advisory Services. In pursuit of professional excellence and client-centric services, he has established his own 

firm under the name "KUNDAN KUMAR MISHRA & ASSOCIATES" — a Peer Reviewed Firm of Company Secretaries 

recognized for its commitment to quality, integrity, and value-driven solutions. 

 

On the other hand, Ms. Sneh Chauhan handles a highly specialized role involving direct communication with board 

members and shareholders, ensuring that company reports are in strict adherence to applicable federal and state regulations. 

She is also responsible for preparing high-level reports and official correspondence for Annual General Meetings and other 

critical corporate events. 

 

Her professional approach and comprehensive legal knowledge make her a key contributor to maintaining sound 

governance and regulatory integrity within the organizations she serves. Ms. Sneh Chauhan is currently associated with 

Vallabhi Capital Private Limited as Manager — Legal &Compliance. 

 

Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra and Ms. Sneh Chauhan have also confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or 

situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact thier ability to discharge his duties as 

an Independent Director of the Company. They have also confirmed that they are not debarred from holding the office of 

a Director by virtue of any Order passed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India or any such authority. Mr. Kundan 

Kumar Mishra and Ms. Sneh Chauhan are ot disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the 

Act.  

 

They have also confirmed that they are in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to the registration with the data bank of Independent Directors 

maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra and Ms. 

Sneh Chauhan fulfills the conditions specified in the Act for appointment as an Independent Director(s) and their 

appointment as such would be in the interest of the Company taking into consideration. Both the Directors also fulfills the 

identified core skills / expertise / competencies and the criteria laid down by the Board in the Company’s Nomination 

Policy for appointment as a Director of the Company and as required in the context of the Company’s business and the 

sector it operates in and exert in legal and business fields of the Company.  

 

Both the Directors also meets the criteria for independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder 

and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and has submitted a declaration to that effect. In the opinion of the 

Board, they both are also independent of the management. The Company has received a notices in writing under Section 

160(1) of the Act from a Member proposing candidature(s) Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra and Ms. Sneh Chauhan as a 

Directors of the Company. Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra and Ms. Sneh Chauhan have conveyed their consent to act as a 

Director(s) of the Company. The Company has also received other necessary disclosures and declarations from them.  

As per Section 152 of the Act and the rules thereunder, a Director can be appointed with the approval of the Members and 

as per Regulation 17 (1C) of the Listing Regulations, the Company is required to obtain the approval of the Members at 

the next General Meeting or within a period of three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier. Further, as 
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per Regulation 25 (2A) approval of the Members by way of a special resolution is required for the appointment of an 

Independent Director. Accordingly, approval of the Members is being sought for the appointment of Mr. Kundan Kumar 

Mishra and Ms. Sneh Chauhan as Independent Directors of the Company by way of a Special Resolutions.  

 

A copy of the draft letter of appointment as an Independent Director stating the terms and conditions, is available for 

inspection by Members on the website of the Company at 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/policies_programme. 

 

As required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard-2, other requisite 

information is annexed hereto, and forms a part of this Notice. 

 

Your directors recommend Resolution No(s) 7 and 8 for approval by the Members by way of a Special Resolutions. 

Except Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra and Ms. Sneh Chauhan and their relatives to the extent of their shareholding interest, if 

any, in the Company, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in 

anyway concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed Special Resolutions. 

 

For Item Nos. 9, 10 and 11: 

 

This is to inform the members that as per provisions of Regulation 23(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2021, “with effect from April 01, 2025, in case of a listed entity which has 

listed its specified securities on the SME Exchange, a transaction with a related party shall be 

considered material, if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with 

previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds Rupees fifty crore or ten per cent. of the 

annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of 

the listed entity, whichever is lower.”  

 

The Company proposes to enter into certain related party transaction(s) as mentioned below, on mutually agreed terms and 

conditions, and the aggregate of such transaction(s), are expected to cross the applicable materiality thresholds as mentioned 

above. Accordingly, as per the SEBI Listing Regulations, prior approval of the Members is being sought for all such 

arrangements / transactions proposed to be undertaken by the Company. All the said transactions shall be in the ordinary 

course of business of the Company and on an arm’s length basis. 

 

It is also informed to the members that Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited (ITTL), incorporated in 1995, is an Indian 

manufacturer of bias automotive tyres and tubes for trucks, buses, agricultural vehicles, and two- and three-wheelers. ITTL 

entered the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) on March 28, 2022, following an NCLT order. Subsequently, 

the Committee of Creditors approved a resolution plan submitted by Ten on Ten Rubtech Private Limited on December 31, 

2022. After the NCLT's approval on August 9, 2023, and a capital restructuring, the company's shares were relisted on the 

NSE, with trading recommencing from December 2, 2024, marking its successful revival. 

 

On the other hand, Ten on Ten Rubtech Private Limited is a manufacturer of rubber and plastic products, specializing in 

rubber compounds, granules, EPDM granules, and other components. The acquisition of Innovative Tyres & Tubes (ITTL) 

positions Ten on Ten Rubtech to expand its capabilities and market reach within the broader tyre and rubber industry.  



1 2 3 NOTICE STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

 

 

 

Ten on Ten Tyres Private Limited is also involved in the tyre and rubber sector and shares directors with Ten on Ten 

Rubtech. This relationship suggests that the Ten on Ten group has a coordinated strategy to grow its presence in this market, 

with Ten on Ten Tyres potentially handling specific aspects of the tyre business alongside the revitalized ITTL. 

 

Ten on Ten International Private Limited focuses on business services and trading. Incorporated in 2013 and also directed 

by members of the same group, this company likely handles the trading and international business aspects for the larger 

group of companies. This arrangement allows for a division of labor, with Rubtech focusing on manufacturing and 

International handling trade and exports.  

 

For supporting the day to day business activities, the aforesaid parties undertake cross-selling of products/ exchanging 

services etc. amongst themselves so that the synergy benefits can be availed by way of optimal utilization of resources. The 

details of such transactions are provided below:  

 

Name of Related 

Party and Relation 

ship 

Transactio

n Type 

Pricing 

Criteria 

Maximum 

amount of 

transaction 

for which 

approval is 

sought 

Period of 

transaction 

Value of RPT as % 

of Company’s 

audited consolidated 

annual turnover of 

Rs. 158.31 crores for 

the financial year 

2024-25 

Ten on Ten Rubtech 

Private Limited 

(Holding Company 

company having a 

common promoter 

with the Company) 

 

 

 

Cross 

selling/ 

Purchase 

of Goods 

 

 

 

As per the 

prevailing 

market 

price  

₹ 50 Crores For the 

financial 

year 2024-25 

10.15% 

Ten on Ten Tyres 

Private Limited 

(A Sister having a 

common promoter 

with the Company) 

₹50 Crores For the 

financial 

year 2024-25 

13% 

Ten on Ten 

International Private 

Limited 

(A Sister having a 

common promoter 

with the Company) 

₹ 50 Crores For the 

financial 

year 2024-25 

0% 

Ten on Ten Rubtech 

Private Limited 

 

 

 

 

₹ 30 Crores For the 

financial 

year 2024-25 

10.15% 
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(Holding Company 

company having a 

common promoter 

with the Company) 

 

 

Job work 

Sales/Con

version 

Charges  

 

 

On cost to 

cost basis 
Ten on Ten Tyres 

Private Limited 

(A Sister having a 

common promoter 

with the Company) 

₹ 30 Crores For the 

financial 

year 2024-25 

13% 

Ten on Ten 

International Private 

Limited 

(A Sister having a 

common promoter 

with the Company) 

₹ 30 Crores For the 

financial 

year 2024-25 

0% 

Ten on Ten Rubtech 

Pvt. Ltd 

Loan   

As per the 

prevailing 

market 

price 

 

₹ 100 Crores 

For the 

financial 

year 2024-25 

49.37% 

 

 

Further, If the transaction relates to any loans, intercorporate deposits, advances or investments made or given by the listed 

entity or its subsidiary: 

 

Details of the source of funds in connection with the proposed transaction; - Own Funds 

Where any financial indebtedness is incurred to make or give loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments, • 

nature of indebtedness; • cost of funds; and 

• tenure; - Not Applicable 

Applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, interest rate and repayment schedule, whether secured or unsecured; if 

secured, the nature of security; and Loans:  

Tenure – Repayable on Demand 

Interest rate – Charged in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 

Nature - Unsecured 

Investments – In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

the purpose for which the funds will be utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of 

such funds pursuant to the RPT - General corporate purposes/Working Capital Requirement 

 

Notes: 
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Taxes, if any, in relation to the above transactions shall be paid on actual basis. 

 

All such related party transactions entered by the Company are related to the day to day business operations of the Company 

and essential for its activities.  

  

1. So far as pricing is concerned, all the transactions meets the arm’s length criteria. In case Valuation Report from 

the Independent valuer or external party in relation with the aforesaid transactions will taken as and where 

applicable and will be placed before the Audit Committee or Board, as the case may be as well as the same shall 

be  made available through the registered email address of the shareholders. 

 

Justification:  

 

1. All the Companies are engaged into similar line of the business and therefore in order to have benefit of 

operational synergies, the Company enters into related party transaction with it in the ordinary course of business 

and arms-length basis. 

 

2. All the Companies have a great collaboration in current market segment. Their market expertise, shared 

understanding, and streamlined supply chain make related party transactions beneficial. This partnership ensures 

competitive pricing, quality assurance, and adherence to regulatory standards. The companies' commitment to 

transparency and corporate governance assures fair dealings and avoids conflicts of interest.  

 

3. This collaboration through fosters innovation and sustainable practices, driving mutual growth and success. We 

maintain utmost compliance and ethical standards to protect stakeholders' interests throughout the related party 

transactions. 

 

It is also pertinent to note that the Audit Committee at its meeting held on September 5, 2025, on the basis of information 

provided hereinabove, has recommended the said related party transactions. Further, in case of any material modification 

in the aforementioned related party transactions, the approval of members of the Company shall be taken in accordance 

with “Policy on Related Party Transactions” of the Company and the Listing Regulations.  

 

Except, executive directors of the Company and his relatives (to the extent of their shareholding in the Company), none 

of the Director and Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are deemed to be concerned or interested, financially 

or otherwise, in the resolution at Item no. 9 to 11 of the accompanying notice. The Board recommends the resolutions 

at Item no. 7 to 9 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution(s). 

 

The Members may please note that in terms of the provisions of the Listing Regulations, all the related party(ies) shall 

abstain from voting in favour of the resolutions under Item No. 9 to 11.  

 

 

 

Place: Halol          By order of the Board of Directors 

Date: September 5, 2025             For Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited 

 

       Munish Chawla 
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         DIN-06454015 

   Managing Director 

Registered Office: 

1201, 1202, 120 3, GIDC Halol, 

Panchmahal – 389350. 

CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579 

Website: www.innovativetyres.com 

E-mail: investors@innovativetyres.co.in Tel: 02676 -220621 

 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/
mailto:investors@innovativetyres.co.in
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DETAILS AS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATION 36(3) OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS AND CLAUSE 1.2.5 OF 

SECRETARIAL STANDARD-2 

 

Particula

rs 

Mr. 

Munis

h 

Chawl

a 

Mr. Robin Chawla Mr. Kundan Kumar 

Mishra 

Ms. Sneh Chauhan 

Age/ DOB 10-02-

1971 

21-05-

1999 

23-01-

1992 

0

9

-

1

1

-

1

9

8

9 

Qualificati

ons 

Compl

eted 

Gradua

tion in 

Engine

ering 

degree. 

graduate 

in Data 

Science 

from the 

University 

of 

Toronto. 

Company 

Secretary 

C

o

m

p

a

n

y 

S

e

cr

et

ar

y 

Experienc

e 

(including 

expertise 

in specific 

Appx-

30Year

s 

Appx-3-5 

Years 

Mr. Kundan Kumar 

Mishra is a seasoned 

professional and a 

Commerce Graduate, 

proudly holding 

membership with the 

Ms. Sneh Chauhan 

is an accomplished 

Company Secretary 

with over 9 years of 

experience in 

corporate 
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functional 

area) / 

Brief 

Resume 

prestigious Institute of 

Company Secretaries of 

India (ICSI). With over 9 

years of rich and diverse 

experience in the 

corporate and consulting 

domain, he has worked 

extensively across 

industry verticals, both in-

house and in practice. 

 

His expertise spans 

across key areas of 

Corporate Law, 

Regulatory Compliance, 

Business Strategy, Risk 

Management, and 

Financial Advisory 

Services. In pursuit of 

professional excellence 

and client-centric 

services, he has 

established his own firm 

under the name 

"KUNDAN KUMAR 

MISHRA & 

ASSOCIATES" — a 

Peer Reviewed Firm of 

Company Secretaries 

recognized for its 

commitment to quality, 

integrity, and value-

driven solutions. 

governance, 

regulatory 

compliance, and 

secretarial 

functions, primarily 

for NBFCs and 

listed companies. 

She brings in-depth 

expertise in the 

Companies Act, 

2013, RBI Master 

Directions, SEBI 

Regulations, and 

FEMA, with a 

strong track record 

of ensuring end-to-

end compliance 

across statutory 

filings, board 

processes, and 

NBFC operations. 

 

In her current 

capacity, Ms. 

Chauhan handles a 

highly specialized 

role involving direct 

communication 

with board members 

and shareholders, 

ensuring that 

company reports are 

in strict adherence 

to applicable federal 

and state 

regulations. She is 

also responsible for 

preparing high-level 
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reports and official 

correspondence for 

Annual General 

Meetings and other 

critical corporate 

events. 

Her professional 

approach and 

comprehensive 

legal knowledge 

make her a key 

contributor to 

maintaining sound 

governance and 

regulatory integrity 

within the 

organizations she 

serves. 

Ms. Sneh Chauhan 

is currently 

associated with 

Vallabhi Capital 

Private Limited as 

Manager – Legal & 

Compliance.  

 

Terms and 

Conditions 

of 

Appointm

ent 

NA NA NA N

A 

Remunera

tion last 

drawn  

- -   

Remunera

tion 

proposed 

187500

/- 

90000/-   
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to be paid 

Date of 

first 

appointme

nt on the 

Board 

09-08-

2023 

09-08-2023 15-07-2025 15-07-

2025 

Shareholdi

ng in the 

Company 

including 

shareholdi

ng as a 

beneficial 

owner as 

on date of 

Postal 

Ballot 

Notice 

94.55% NA NA N

A 

Relationsh

ip with 

other 

Directors / 

Key 

Manageria

l Personnel 

Father 

of 

Robin 

Chawla

,Direct

or 

Son of 

Managing 

Director 

NA N

A 

Number of 

meetings 

of the 

Board 

attended 

03/07 07/07 NA N

A 

Directorsh

ips of 

other 

Boards as 

on date  

1. Ten 

on Ten 

Rubtec

h 

Private 

Limite

d  

1.Ten on Ten International 

Pvt Ltd 

2.TOT Tyres Private 

Limited 

3.Ten on Ten Rubtech 

Private Limited 

 Ragni Foundation, 

  

Divorox Beverages 

Private Limited 

Vallabhi Capital 

Private Limited 
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2.Ten 

On Ten 

Internat

ional 

Private 

Limite

d 

3.TOT 

Tyres 

Private 

Limite

d 

Membersh

ip / 

Chairman

ship of 

Committee

s of other 

Boards as 

on date of 

Postal 

Ballot 

Notice 

Na NA NA N

A 

Listed 

entities 

from 

which the 

Director 

has 

resigned in 

the past 

three years 

NA Resigned 

as CFO 

from 

Innovativ

e tyres & 

Tubes 

Limited 

Shyama Computronics and 

Services Limited 

 

 

N

A 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

To, 
The Members 
Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited (the “Company”) 

 

Your Board of Directors present the 30th Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 

2025. 

The Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad bench, vide its order dated August 09, 2023 approved the Resolution Plan submitted by 

the Successful Resolution Applicant, Ten on Ten Rubtech Private Limited. A new Board was constituted on August 09, 2023 

and a new management was put in place. 

The approved Resolution Plan is binding on the Company and its employees, members, creditors, including the Central Government, 

any State Government or any local authority to whom a debt in respect of the payment of dues arising under any law for the time being 

in force, such as authorities to whom statutory dues are owed such as guarantors and other stakeholders involved in the Resolution 

Plan. 

The newly constituted Board of Directors were in office for the period starting from August 09, 2023 till the year ended March 31, 

2024. During the period of the CIRP i.e. from March 28, 2022 till August 09, 2023, the IRP/RP was in-charge of the affairs of the 

Operations of the Company. The newly constituted Board is submitting this report in compliance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed thereunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015. The newly constituted Board is not to be considered responsible to discharge 

fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight on financial and operational health of the Company and performance of the 

management for the period upto 17.08.2023. 

 

Despite the NCLT Ahmedabad Bench pronouncing its order on the Company’s interlocutory application dated June 4, 2024, and NSE 

granting in-principle approval for listing of 1,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each on August 29, 2024 and got the trading approval 
on November 28, 2024 with trading intended to commence on December 2, 2024, execution was initially delayed due to an improper lot 

size. NSE subsequently adjusted the lot size to 105 shares, enabling trading to begin promptly thereafter and the change in lot size was 

effective from December 24, 2024. 

  

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarized below: 

(` in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

31st 

March 

2025 

Year ended 

31st 

March 

2024 

Revenue from Operations   4679.25 1417.79 

Other Income 39.97 820.33 

Total Revenue 4719.22 2238.12 

Total expenses 6320.92 2617.79 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation and extraordinary items (1601.70) (379.67) 

Add: Extraordinary items - 3826.63 

Profit /(Loss) before taxation (1601.70) 3446.96 

Less: tax expense (including adjusted deferred tax) (0.04) (2.73) 

Profit /(Loss) after tax (1601.66) 3449.69 

EPS (Basic) (16.02) 19.17 

EPS (Diluted) (16.02) 19.17 
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STATEMENT OF COMPANIES AFFAIRS 

During the year under review the total turnover from operations was `4679.25 lakhs as against the last year’s turnover of `1417.79 

lakhs. The revenue increased due to starting of manufacturing operations after CIRP period. During the year, the company recorded a 

loss of ̀ 1601.66 lakhs as against the previous year’s profit of ̀  3449.69 lakhs. 

 

DIVIDEND 

Considering the loss during the current financial year, your directors unanimously decided not to propose any dividend for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

TRANSFER TO RESERVE 

During the year under review, the Company does not have profits, hence not proposed any amount to be transferred to General 

Reserve for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

SUBSIDIARIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company do not have any subsidiaries. Further in case of consolidation of associate concern, the Company is falling within the 

exemption of AS-23 hence; there is no need to prepare consolidated financial statement for the financial year 2024-25. 

 

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE 

The Equity Shares of your Company are listed on the EMERGE platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). The 

Company had paid Annual Listing fees to the stock exchange for the Financial Year 2025-26. The trading symbol is ITTL and 

the NEW ISIN is INE070Y01023. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT: 

Save as otherwise provided in this report, there have not been any material changes and commitments affecting the financial position 

of the Company since the close of financial year i.e. since March 31, 2025. 

Pursuant to the Order dated August 09, 2023 and Order dated 04-06-2024 passed by the Hon’ble 

NCLT, Ahmedabad bench, the following events took place; 

(I) Consequent to the NCLT Order dated August 09, 2023, Woman Director Mrs. Roshni Chawla and two Independent 

Directors Mr. Umesh Ved and Ms. Jasmin Doshi got appointed on November 10, 2024 along with the appointment of 

Ms. Shweta Sharma, Company Secretary of the Company. 

(ii) Implementation of Resolution Plan: The Resolution Plan envisages amongst other things, reduction in the existing share 

capital of the Company, consolidation of the equity shares of the Company, fresh issue and allotment of equity shares to the 

resolution applicants. Since the order approving the Resolution Plan was passed on August 09, 2023 and the effective date 

for taking over the management of the Company by the resolution applicants was August 09, 2023, and the interlocutory 

application was filed by the Monitoring Committee Chairman as there was a difference in promoter shareholding as per resolution 

plan and as on the date of the NCLT order (dated August 09, 2023) for modification and the final Order of Hon’ble NCLT on 

interlocutory application was pronounced dated June 04, 2024 and the process of reduction in the existing share capital of the 

Company, consolidation of the equity shares of the Company, fresh issue and allotment of equity shares to the resolution 

applicant  has been completed.  

(iii) Dissolution of Monitoring Committee: As the payment has been made as provided in the approved Resolution plan by the 

Company being Corporate Debtor to the Operational creditors, Financial Creditors, CIRP Cost, employee dues as per the 

Resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad bench, the Monitoring Committee has been dissolved on 

August 08, 2024.    

 

RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 

The Company recognizes that effective risk management is vital for sustaining business growth and protecting 
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stakeholder interests. A comprehensive framework is in place to identify, assess, and mitigate risks across strategic, 
operational, financial, regulatory, and environmental areas. Strategic risks arise from market dynamics and 

competition; operational risks relate to supply chain, production efficiency, and technology; financial risks include 

foreign exchange, liquidity, and credit exposure; regulatory risks stem from evolving compliance requirements; and 
environmental risks relate to climate change and sustainability. 

 

The Company follows a structured approach involving internal controls, periodic audits, and regular monitoring of key 
risks. The Audit Committee and the Board review the risk profile and mitigation measures on an ongoing basis, 

ensuring effective oversight and timely action. This framework enables the Company to minimize adverse impacts, 

ensure business continuity, and enhance resilience while capitalizing on emerging opportunities. 

 

Recommendation: Place this under the "Board’s Report – Risk Management" clause. 

Next step: Cross-reference with internal risk registers and committee reviews for accuracy. 

 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

In accordance with the Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the annual return of the Company as on 

March 31, 2025 in the prescribed format is available on the Company’s website at https://www.innovativetyres.com/. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

In compliance of the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, other applicable provisions of the Act, the Companies 

(Appointment and Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on dated May 30, 2024, 

appointed M/s. Swati Bhatt & Co., Practicing Company Secretary, Vadodara as Secretarial Auditor of the company for the F.Y. 

2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report of Financial year 2024-25 is attached as an Annexure – 1. 

The Secretarial Audit Report contain following observation:  

i. The Company has made export sales of Rs 69.24 Lacs to a Party which has not realized within 9 months of the date of export. 

The company has not applied to AD Bank for extension of the time limit of export realization. Non-realization of export proceeds 

within a period of 9 months from the date of export of goods leads to non-compliance as per Foreign Exchange Management 

(Export of Goods and Services) Regulations, 2015. 

In repose to the same, the Board clarifies that the delay in realization of export proceeds was due to commercial reasons beyond 

the control of the Company. The management is actively pursuing the matter with the concerned overseas party to ensure 

realization of the pending export receivables at the earliest. 

Further, the Board has directed the management to strengthen its monitoring mechanism to ensure timely realization of export 

proceeds in future and to seek necessary approvals/extensions from the Authorized Dealer Bank within the stipulated timeframe 

wherever required, so that such non-compliance does not recur. 

ii. The Company has reversed Input Tax Credit of Rs. 28.98 Lakhs in the books of accounts due to non-payment of creditors for 

more than 180 days. However, the said GST input tax credit has not been reversed on the GST portal. To that extent, a difference 

exists between the GST balance as per the books and the GST balance as per the GST portal. 

The Board has taken note of the observation relating to reversal of Input Tax Credit (ITC) of ₹28.98 Lakhs in the books of 

accounts due to non-payment of creditors beyond 180 days, without a corresponding reversal on the GST portal. The management 

is in the process of initiating corrective action to ensure that the reversal is appropriately reflected on the GST portal so that 

statutory records are aligned with the books of accounts. The Board has advised the management to implement stricter controls  

to ensure timely compliance with GST requirements going forward. 

iii. The Company has not provided with balance confirmations of major debtors and creditors. We have performed substantive 

procedures. However, the balances of debtors and creditors, including advances from customers and advances to suppliers, are 

subject to reconciliation and confirmation from the respective parties. 

The Board has noted the observation regarding non-availability of balance confirmations from certain major debtors and creditors. 

The management is in the process of obtaining confirmations and carrying out reconciliations with respective parties to ensure 

accuracy and completeness of the balances. The Board has further directed the management to strengthen internal procedures to  
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ensure that balance confirmations are obtained and reconciled on a timely basis in future. 

iv. The Company has accepted advances for the supply of goods from 13 parties, amounting to Rs. 49.27 Lakhs. However, 

such advances have not been appropriated against the supply of goods within a period of three hundred and sixty-five 
days from the date of acceptance, which constitutes a contravention of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Board has noted the observation regarding advances amounting to ₹49.27 Lakhs accepted from 13 parties which have not been 
adjusted against the supply of goods within 365 days from the date of acceptance, thereby attracting the provisions of Section 73 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. The management is in the process of reconciling these advances with the respective parties and taking 

necessary steps to either adjust them against supplies or refund the same, as applicable. The Board has further directed the 
management to strengthen monitoring and compliance mechanisms to ensure that such advances are appropriated or refunded within 

the stipulated timelines in the future. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Integrity and transparency are key factors to our corporate governance practices to ensure that we achieve and will 

retain the trust of our stakeholders at all times. Corporate governance is about maximizing shareholder value legally, 
ethically and sustainably. Our Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the widest sense of the term. Our 

disclosures seek to attain the best practices in international corporate governance. We also endeavor to enhance long-

term shareholder value and respect minority rights in all our business decisions. The Company is listed on NSE 
EMERGE Platform. Hence, filing of Corporate Governance report for the year ended March 31, 2025 is not applicable 

to Company. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT: 

As per Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 

2015 the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is attached as Annexure- 2 to this Annual Report. 

 

DISCLOSURE ON DEPOSITS UNDER CHAPTER V 

Save as otherwise provided in Statutory Auditors’ Report, the Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during 

the financial year 2024-25 in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

 

Pursuant to the taking over of the operations of the Company by the new management, the Company is putting in place 

a framework for Internal Financial Controls, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of the Company’s 
operations. 

 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

During the financial year 2024-25, the following changes took place in the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 

the Company: 

 

 On 15th July, 2025, the Board appointed Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra and Mr. Sneh Chauhan as Additional Independent 

Directors of the Company. On the same date, Mr. Anand Mohan Gupta was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

of the Company. 

 Mr. Robin Chawla, who was serving as Director & CFO, ceased to hold the position of CFO with effect from 14th July, 2025. 

He, however, continues to serve on the Board as a Non-Executive Director. 

 Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla (DIN: 08303533) ceased to be a Non-Executive Director with effect from 27th September, 

2024 (having served from 9th August, 2023). 

Changes after the close of the financial year (post 31st March, 2025) 
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 Subsequent to the closure of the financial year, the following Directors resigned from the Board, and their resignations were  

duly noted by the Board in its respective meetings: 

o Mr. Umesh Ved ceased to be an Independent Director with effect from 7th June, 2025 (having served from 10th 

November, 2023). 

o Ms. Jasmin Doshi ceased to be an Independent Director with effect from 10th June, 2025 (having served from 10th 

November, 2023). 

o Mrs. Roshni Chawla ceased to be a Non-Executive Director with effect from 14th July, 2025 (having served from 

10th November, 2023). 

 

Both the independent directors resigned due to change in the management and their pre-occupancy. There was no other reason of 

resignation.  

Accordingly, as on 31st March, 2025 and thereafter, the composition of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is as under: 

 

 
Sr. No. Name of Directors/KMP Designation 

1. Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra Independent (Additional) Director (w.e.f. 15-07-2025) 
2. Mr. Sneh Chauhan Independent (Additional) Director (w.e.f. 15-07-2025)  
3. Mr. Anand Mohan Gupta CFO (w.e.f. 15-07-2025) 
4. Mr. Munish Chawla Managing Director (w.e.f. 09-08-2023) 
5. Mr. Robin Chawla Non-executive Director (w.e.f. 09-08-2023) and Director & CFO (w.e.f. 10-11-

2023 to 14-07-2025) 
6. Mrs. Shweta Pankaj Sharma Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (w.e.f. 10-11-2023) 

 

 

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

During the year, the Board met 7 (Seven) times i. e. on May 30, 2024, on June 13, 2024, July 4,2024, August 29, 2024, 

September 27, 2024, November 14, 2024 and February 01, 2025.  Details of Directors presence in each board meeting 

is mentioned below: 

Name of Directors Number of Meetings attended / Total Meetings held during the F.Y. 2024-25. 

Mr.Munish Chawla 03/07 

Mr.Robin Chawla 07/07 

Mr.Ramesh Chandar Chawla 00/05 

Mrs.Roshni Chawla 03/07 

Mr.Umesh Ved 07/07 

Ms.Jasmin Doshi 07/07 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

The members of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held on 29th December 2023 had appointed M/s Haribhakti 

& Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 103523W/W100048), as Statutory Auditors for a term of balance 
four years. For FY 2024-25, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 30th May 2024 have proposed, subject to 

shareholder approval, the ratification of their appointment to hold office for the balance term up to the conclusion of the 32nd 

Annual General Meeting in the year 2026-27. 

The Statutory Auditor presented their resignation due to shifting all office operations to Mumbai, indicating that this 
relocation would significantly limit their ability to effectively conduct audits from the current base. 
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The auditor confirmed their intent to file Form ADT 3 within 30 days, and provided particulars as required: 

• Reason: Office relocation to Mumbai. 

• Effect on services: Potential delays and logistical constraints. 

• Confirmation that no other material reasons exist. 

 

 

FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITOR UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

There was no instance of fraud reported by the auditor in their report under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

COST AUDITORS 

The Company appointed M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost & Management Accountants, Vadodara has been done in the meeting of the 

Board held on May 30 2025, to conduct the Cost Audit for the financial year 2024-25 as per Section 148 of Companies Act, 

2013. 

The Report for the Financial year 2023-24 is received and filed by the company from M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost & Management 

Accountants, Vadodara.  

 

INTERNAL AUDITOR 

M/s Khode & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Internal Auditor of the company has submitted their Report for the Financial 

Year 2024-25 and now the firm has been re-appointed as the Internal Auditors of the Company for FY 2025-26 to conduct the 

Internal Audit on the basis of detailed Internal Audit Plan.  

 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 
 

Considering the performance of Secretarial Auditor Board of Directors have decided to continue with the same secretarial 

Auditor and re-appointed M/s. Swati Bhatt & Co., Practicing Company Secretary, Vadodara as Secretarial Auditor to conduct 

the secretarial audit for the financial year 2025-26 at their meeting held on May 30, 2025. 

 

STATEMENT ON IMPACT OF AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS (FOR AUDIT REPORT WITH MODIFIED OPINION) 

The Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) for financial year 2024-25 is attached to this report as 

Annexure - 3. 

 

BOARD’S COMMENT ON THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

In the report of the Independent Auditors for the year ended March 31, 2025, forming part of this Annual Report, the Auditors 

have given following observations: - 

(a) The Company has accepted advances for the supply of goods from 13 parties amounts to Rs 49.27 Lakhs but such advance has not 
been appropriated against supply of goods within a period of three hundred and sixty-five days from the date of acceptance of such 

advances which is a contravention of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(b) The Company has reversed Input Tax Credit of Rs 28.98 lakhs in the books of accounts due to non-payment of creditors for more 
than 180 days.  However, the said GST input tax credit has not been reversed on the GST portal. To that extent, there exists a 

difference between the GST balance as per Books and GST balance as per GST portal. 

(c) We have not been provided with Balance Confirmations of Major Debtors and Creditors. We have performed substantive 

procedures. However, Balances of Debtors and Creditors including Advances from customer and Advances to Suppliers are subject to 
reconciliation/ confirmation from parties. 
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(d) The Company has made export sales of Rs 69.24 Lacs to a Party which has not realized within 9 months of the date of export. The 
company has not applied to AD Bank for extension of the time limit of export realization. Non-realization of export proceeds within a 

period of 9 months from the date of export of goods leads to non-compliance as per Regulation 9(1) of the Foreign Exchange 

Management (Export of Goods and Services) Regulations, 2015. 

 

In relation to the observations referred above, the point wise submissions of the Board are as under: 

1. The Advance from Customers were in the nature of dealer deposit. However, in absence of planned production 
including capital expansion the documents remained unexecuted during the year which will be executed in the current 

year on the achievement of its production capacity. The Company is taking active steps to realise outstanding export 

proceeds overdue from overseas customer. However, due to international world over instability, the money has stuck 
up. Further, the company had attempted to get the balance confirmation from vendors and customers however majority 

are still awaited. The company is doing best efforts to obtain. Regarding the reversal of GST on GST portal, this is 

expected to be matched in this half year.  

2. in realization of export proceeds was due to commercial reasons beyond the control of the Company. The management 

is actively pursuing the matter with the concerned overseas party to ensure realization of the pending export receivables 

at the earliest. 

The Board has directed the management to strengthen its monitoring mechanism to ensure timely realization of export 

proceeds in future and to seek necessary approvals/extensions from the Authorized Dealer Bank within the stipulated 

timeframe wherever required, so that such non-compliance does not recur. 

Other observations and opinions of the Statutory Auditors in their report are self-explanatory and they do not call for any 

further explanation as required under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 
(i) The Company’s issued and paid-up share capital before approval of Resolution plan was Rs.17,99,15,610/- divided into 1,79,91,561 

fully paid-up Equity shares of Rs.10/- each. As the Interlocutory Order pronounced by the Hon’ble NCLT dated June 04, 2024 the 

Record Date was set by the board for Corporate Actions namely capital reduction of equity shares held by public shareholders i.e 
public shareholding was reduced to 5,45,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 54,50,000/-. All public shareholders 

holding 100 equity shares of the company on the Record Date were issued 3.52 new equity shares of the company and The Resolution 

Applicant (i.e new promoter) and or its nominees got issued 94,55,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid. This reorganization 
of the equity share capital involving, the extinguishment of the equity shareholdings of the promoter and, reduction of equity 

shareholding of the public shareholders and the issue of fresh equity shares to the Resolution Applicant has been deemed to be in 

compliance with all applicable Laws. 

 
The paid-up equity share capital of the Corporate Debtor after the aforesaid changes is Rs. 10,00,00,000 /- made up of 1,00,00,000 

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.  

 

FRESH ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES 

Fresh issue of equity shares: 

Post reduction of equity share capital and consolidation of existing equity shares, 94,55,000 fresh equity shares of the Company 

were issued and allotted to the Successful Resolution Applicants and its affiliates on dated June 26, 2024, at a price of Rs.10/- 

each. 

 

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL 

 

As per the order pronounced by the Hon’ble NCLT dated June 04, 2024 against Interlocutory Application filed by the 

Resolution Professional for mismatch in the shareholding of promoter and public in the original order dated August 9, 
2023. The Reorganization of the Share Capital will be as under: 

 

The Company’s paid-up capital till June 26, 2024 (i.e Record Date) was Rs.17,99,15,610/- is divided into 1,79,91,561 equity shares 
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of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up, and the same was held by the promoters of the Company as well as the public shareholders. All issued 
and paid-up equity shares of the Company held by the promoters and promoter group on the Record Date shall stand cancelled and 

extinguished without any further act or deed to be done by the Company. The balance issued and paid-up equity shares held by public 

shareholders of the Corporate Debtor on the Record Date shall stand reduced to 5,45,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to 
Rs. 54,50,000/-. All public shareholders holding 100 equity shares of the Company on the Record Date shall be issued 3.52 new equity 

shares of the Company upon such reduction of share capital of the Company fractional shareholdings of less than 1 equity share shall 

be rounded off to the nearest higher or lower integer, and the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents of the Company shall have absolute 
discretion in deciding such rounding off to ensure that the aggregate allotment of new equity shares to the public shareholders of the 

Company becomes exactly 5,45,000. The Record date mentioned herein shall be the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the 

Company to determine the eligibility of the public shareholders who would be issued new shares consequent upon reduction of their 

shares in terms of this Plan. The Resolution Applicant (Ten on Ten Rubtech Private Limited) and or its nominees shall be issued 
94,55,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid at par, aggregating to Rs, 9,45,50,000/ as equity capital infusion at par after the 

remittance of the Resolution Plan amount of Rs. 9,45,50,000/- to the Resolution Professional/Company after approval of the 

Resolution Plan and as per schedule of payment thereof. 

 

This reorganization of the equity share capital involving, the extinguishment of the equity shareholdings of the promoter and, reduction 
of equity shareholding of the public shareholders and the Issue of fresh equity shares to the Resolution Applicant shall be deemed to 

be in compliance with all applicable Laws. The paid-up equity share capital of the Company after the aforesaid changes shall be Rs. 

10,00,00,000 /- made up of 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. The aggregate 1,00,00,000 equity shares as above comprising 
of 5,45,000 new equity shares to be issued to the public shareholders of the Company upon reduction of their share capital and 

94,55,000 new equity shares to be issued to the Resolution Applicant and its nominees shall be listed by the Stock Exchange where 

the existing equity shares of the Company are presently listed. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013 

With reference to Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013, no loans, guarantees and investments other than trade investments 

have been made under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the earlier years as well as during the year under review. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

With reference to section 134(2)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, related party transactions were entered into during the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025 and all the transactions are on arm’s length basis and in ordinary course of business and material 

transactions are disclosed in Form AOC-2 annexed as Annexure-4. The Board has approved a policy for related party 

transactions which has been updated on the Company’s website.  

The web-link as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 is 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/Financials. 

 

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL 

RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES (CSR) 

 

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to Corporate Social Responsibility, are applicable to the Company. 

However, since the Company has incurred losses during the last three financial years, it was not required to constitute a CSR Committee, 

nor was it obligated to incur any CSR expenditure for the financial year 2024-25. In compliance with the statutory requirements, the 

Annual Report on CSR activities for the financial year 2024-25, containing the requisite details prescribed under Section 135 of the Act 

and the rules made thereunder, forms part of this Report and is annexed as Annexure-5. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Board has constituted various Committees to ensure focused attention on specific areas and to enable 

better governance. These Committees function in accordance with their respective terms of reference as approved by the 

Board. 
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The Committees of the Board include the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee, among others as may be required under applicable laws. The composition of each of 

these Committees is in compliance with the requirements prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015. 

The Committees meet at regular intervals and report to the Board on matters entrusted to them, thereby supporting effective 

decision-making and ensuring compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 

 

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Pursuant to Section 177(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its 

Powers) Rules, 2013, the company has re-constituted Audit Committee. Composition of Audit Committee is as follows. 

The Audit Committee of the company reconstituted on July 26, 2025 with Two Independent Directors and one Non-Executive 

Director of the company. All the Directors have good understanding of Finance, Accounts and Law. 

 

Name of Member Category 

Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra Chairman to the Committee 

Ms. Sneh Chauhan Member to the Committee 

Mr. Munish Chawla Member to the Committee 

Mrs. Shweta Pankaj Sharma, Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the committee. 

 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE: 

a) The Audit Committee is, inter-alia, responsible for overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting process, reviewing the 

quarterly/half-yearly/ annual financial statements, reviewing with the management on the financial statements and adequacy of 

internal audit function, recommending the appointment / re-appointment of statutory auditors and fixation of audit fees along 

with reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, reviewing the significant internal audit findings /  

related party transactions, reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and result of operation.  

b) The Committee acts as a link between the management, external and internal auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company. 

The Committee discussed with the external auditors their audit methodology, audit planning and significant observations / 

suggestions made by them. The Committee also discussed major issues related to risk management, compliances and review the 

functioning of Whistle Blower Mechanism and approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer.  

c) In addition, the Committee has discharged such other role/function as envisaged under Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule 

II of Listing Regulations and the provisions of Section 177(4) of the Act. 

 

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE 

OF THEIR DUTIES 

As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Company has been re-constituted its Nomination & Remuneration Committee inducting the 

following members w.e.f. July 26, 2025. 

 

Name of Member Category 

Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra Chairman to the Committee 

Ms. Sneh Cauhan Member to the Committee 

Shweta Pankaj Sharma, Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the committee. 

 

The policies of the Company on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration formulates the criteria for determining qualifications, 
competencies, positive attributes and independence of a Director and other matters like remuneration of directors, key managerial 
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personnel, senior management and other employees. The policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and other employees is framed with the object of attracting, retaining and motivating talent which is required to run the Company 

successfully. There was no change in these policy. The policy is available on the website of the Company at the link: 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/policies_programme. 

 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE: 

In compliance with section 178 of the companies Act 2013 & Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirement) Regulations, 2015 The Company has reconstituted a Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board. All 

members of the committee are non-Executive Directors and two of them are Independent Directors. The terms of reference of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“the Committee”) would inter alia include: 

 To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and/or removal. 

 To carry out the evaluation of every Director’s performance. 

 To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director. 

 To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 

employees. Such Remuneration policy shall be disclosed in the Annual Report of the Company. 

 To review and recommend, subject to the Shareholders’ approval, the remuneration of the Managing Director and other 

Whole-time/ Executive Directors. 

 

STAKEHOLDERS GRIEVANCES COMMITTEE 

To solve the investor’s grievances, company has constituted Stakeholders/Investor Grievance Committee. 

The Chairperson of this Committee is non-executive director pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015. 

 

Composition of Committee is as follows: 

 

Name of Member Category 

Ms. Sneh Chauhan Chairperson to the Committee 

Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra Member to the Committee 

 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and accordingly framed a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy enables the 

employees to report to the management instances of unethical behavior actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company’s 

Code of Conduct. Further the mechanism adopted by the Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine 
concerns or grievances and provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of the Whistle Blower who avails of such 

mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The 

functioning of vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. None of the Whistle blowers has 
been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on the 

website of the Company. 

 

THE DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT’ 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 (1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016: 

The Disclosure pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act’ 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 is provided as Annexure – 6. 

The information required pursuant to Section 134 read with rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Board report and shall be provided to the members upon specific request. In terms of Section 

136 of the Act, the report and accounts are being sent to members, excluding the information on employees’ particulars, which is 



Annual Report 2024-25 11 

 

 

available for inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company 

up to the date of the ensuing General Meeting. Interested members may write to the Company. No employee is related to any Director 

of the Company. 

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

The members may kindly note that, the directors of the company have joined the office from the period started from 09-08-

2023. During the CIRP (i.e. between March 28, 2022 to August 09, 2023), Resolution Professional was entrusted with and 

responsible for the management of the affairs of the Company. The New (Reconstituted) Board is submitting this report in 

compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. 

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the New (Reconstituted) Board of Directors, based on the knowledge/ information 

gained by them, about the affairs of the Company, to the best of their knowledge state that: 

I. In preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable Accounting Standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

ii. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and of 
the loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

iii. The directors had Proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

iv. The annual financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared on “going concern” basis; Internal 
financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company and such financial controls are adequate and are operating 
effectively, and 

vi. Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are 
adequate and operating effectively. 

 

BOARD EVALUATION 

 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual 

directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing 

Regulations”). The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the 

basis of the criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information, functioning 

etc. The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on 

the basis of criteria such as the composition of committee, effectiveness of committee meetings etc. 

 

The Board and the Nomination & Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the 

basis of criteria such as the contribution of individual director to the board and committee meetings, representation of 

shareholder’s interest and enhancing shareholders value etc. In addition, Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of 

his role. Performance evaluation of independent directors were done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being 

evaluated. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

A.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo have been furnished below: 

 

 
 



Annual Report 2024-25 12 

 

 

1. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 

 Recovery of process discharged water which was otherwise being disposed off. 

 Steam utilization efficiency improvement (Leakage). 

 Rationalisation and modification of steam distribution system. 

 

2.The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: 
 

 Use of day lights by providing transparent roof sheets. 

 

3.Capital investment on energy conservation equipments: NIL 

 

B. EFFORTS MADE TOWARDS TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

a. Efforts made towards technology absorption: 

The Company is exploring technology options for better manufacturing process. Development of R & D Centre during the 

year is mainly focused for exploring better technologies available in the existing product and new models. 

b. Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution 

The company is able to cater its customers through innovation in technology and through product mix Quality improvement 

c. Information regarding technology imported, during the last year: The Company has not imported technology.  

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Total foreign exchange outgo (incl. High Seas) NIL NIL 

Total foreign exchange inflow NIL NIL 

 

During the year under review operations started after Hon’ble NCLT pronounced Order dated 09.08.2023, so the new 

management gas trying to adopt proper systems as may be necessary.   

 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND 

TRIBUNALS 

Save as otherwise provided in this report, there have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or 

courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations.  

DISCLOSURE OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE UNDER WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

To foster a positive workplace environment free from harassment of any nature we have framed Prevention of Sexual 

Harassment Policy through which we address complaints of sexual harassment at all workplaces of the Company. Our 

policy assures discretion and guarantees non-retaliation to complainants. We follow a gender-neutral approach in handling 

complaints of sexual harassment and we are compliant with the law of the land where we operate.  

Number of sexual harassment complaints received- Nil  

Number of sexual harassment complaints Disposed-off during the year- Nil  
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Number of sexual harassment cases pending for a period exceeding ninety days- Nil 

 

MATERNITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE  

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as amended from time to time. Adequate 

facilities and support, including paid maternity leave and nursing breaks, have been extended to eligible women employees 

during the financial year. The Company remains committed to ensuring a safe, supportive, and inclusive workplace for all 

its employees. 

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES UNDER COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

The Company has not issued any bonus shares, sweat equity shares, shares with differential voting rights and equity shares 

on rights basis during the year under review. 

No material changes and commitments which could affect the Company’s financial position have occurred between the end 

of the financial year of the Company and date of this report. 

There was no change in the nature of business during the year under review. 

The provisions regarding receipt of remuneration or commission from holding or subsidiary of the Company are not 

applicable and hence, the disclosure under Section 197 (14) is not required. 

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India on 

Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings. 
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The Board acknowledges with gratitude the co-operation and assistance provided to your company by its bankers, Financial 

Institutions, and government as well as non-government agencies. The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation to 
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FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

 

 

Munish Chawla 

Managing Director  

(DIN-06454015) 

Date: September 5, 2025 

Place: Halol  
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     ANNEXURE – 1 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited 

(CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579) 

Plot No. 1201, 1202, 1203 GIDC Halol, 

Panchmahals – 389350, Gujarat. 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by M/s. INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 

conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on 31st 

March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 

and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

1. We have examined the books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 

M/s. Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited (“The Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 

according to the provisions of: 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under; 

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of    

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

V.     The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and   Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’) is applicable to the Company: - 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of   Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;   

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;  

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 / The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employees 

Benefits), Regulations, 2014; 

Not applicable as the Company has not issued any options/ shares under the said Regulations during the 

year under review. 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

Not applicable as the Company has not issued any Debt Securities during the year under review. 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;  

Not applicable as the Company has not delisted any of its shares from any of the Stock Exchanges during 

the year under review. 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;  

Not applicable as the Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review. 

j) The Company has complied with the requirements under the Equity Listing Agreements entered into 

with National Stock Exchange of India Limited;  

 

VI.   Other laws specifically applicable to the Company as per the representation given by the Company: 

  

  Name of Acts applicable to the Company are as under: 

1. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and rules made there under. 

2. Water (Prevention and control of pollution) Act, 1974 and rules made there under. 

3. Apprentices Act, 1961 and Apprenticeship Rules, 1992. 

4. Labour Welfare Fund (Gujarat) Rules,1962. 

5. The Customs Act, 1962. 

6. Central Goods & Services Tax (CGST). 

7. State Goods & Services Tax (SGST). 

8. Integrated Goods and Service Tax (IGST). 

9. Child Labour (prohibition & Regulation) Act, 1986. 

10. Contract Labour Regulation and Abolition Act, 1970. 

11. Customs Valuation (Determination of value of imported goods) Rules, 2007. 

12. Electricity Act, 2003 and Indian Electricity Rules,    1956/2005. 

13. Employee Deposit linked insurance scheme, 1976. 
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14. Employee Compensation Act, 1923 and rules made there under. 

15. Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. 

16. Employee State Insurance Act, 1948. 

17. Employment Exchange Act, 1959 and Rules made there under. 

18. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and Equal Remuneration Rules, 1976. 

19. Explosives Act, 1884 and rules made there under. 

20. Factories Act, 1948. 

21. Foreign Trade Policy. 

22. Foreign Trade (Development & Regulation) Act, 1992 and Foreign Trade (Regulation) Rules, 1993. 

23. Gujarat Panchayats, Municipalities municipal corporation Act, 1992 and Rules made there under. 

24. Gujarat Lifts and Escalators Act, 2008. 

25. Income Tax Act, 1961 and Income Tax Rules, 1962. 

26. Industrial Employment Act, 1946. 

27. Information Technology Act, 2008. 

28. Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. 

29. Minimum Wages Act, 1948. 

30. Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 and Central Motor Vehicle Rules, 1989. 

31. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and Payment of Bonus Rules, 1975. 

32. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. 

33. Payment of Wages Act, 1936. 

34. Petroleum Act, 1934 and Petroleum Rules, 2002. 

35. Professional Tax Act, 1987. 

36. Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 and Public Liability Insurance Rules, 1991. 

37. Gujarat Shop & Establishment Act. 

38. Sexual Harassment of women at workplace prevention, prohibition redressal Act, 1991.  

39. Shipping Bill and Bill of Export (Form) Regulations, 1991. 

 

During the year under review, the Company generally complied with all applicable provisions of the aforementioned 

Acts.  

However: 

1. The Company has accepted advances for the supply of goods from 13 parties, amounting to Rs. 49.27 Lakhs. 

However, such advances have not been appropriated against the supply of goods within a period of three hundred 

and sixty-five days from the date of acceptance, which constitutes a contravention of Section 73 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

2. The Company has reversed Input Tax Credit of Rs. 28.98 Lakhs in the books of accounts due to non-payment of 

creditors for more than 180 days. However, the said GST input tax credit has not been reversed on the GST portal. 
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To that extent, a difference exists between the GST balance as per the books and the GST balance as per the GST 

portal. 

3. The Company has not provided with balance confirmations of major debtors and creditors. We have performed 

substantive procedures. However, the balances of debtors and creditors, including advances from customers and 

advances to suppliers, are subject to reconciliation and confirmation from the respective parties. 

4. The Company has made export sales of Rs. 69.24 Lakhs to a party, the proceeds of which have not been realized 

within 9 months from the date of export. The Company has not applied to the Authorized Dealer (AD) Bank for an 

extension of the time limit for export realization. Non-realization of export proceeds within 9 months from the date 

of export of goods leads to non-compliance as per the Foreign Exchange Management (Export of Goods and 

Services) Regulations, 2015. 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

 

 

 

During the year under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements etc as mentioned above.  

 

2) We further report that, the Company has, in our opinion, complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Rules made under the said Act and the Memorandum 

and Articles of Association of the Company, with regard to: 

 

a) Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein; 

b) Closure of the Register of Members;  

c) Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and the 

Central Government; 

d) Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies; 

e) Notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors; 

f) The meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by circulation; 

g) The Annual General Meeting held on 23rd September, 2024 for the financial year 2023-24; 

h) Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings; 

i) Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the government 

authorities, wherever required; 
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j) Constitution of the Board of Directors / Committee(s) of Directors, appointment, retirement and 

reappointment of Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors; 

k) Payment of remuneration to Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors, 

l) Appointment and remuneration of Auditors and Cost Auditors; 

m) Transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and make necessary endorsement on the reverse side 

of the respective Share Certificates; (During the year under review, no shares were transferred and 

transmission.) 

n) Declaration and payment of dividends; 

(During the year under review, the Company has not declared dividend.)  

o) Transfer of certain amounts as required under the Act to the Investor Education and Protection Fund and 

uploading of details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends on the websites of the Company and the Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs; 

(During the year under review, no dividend was declared, hence provision of investors education and 

protection fund is not applicable.)  

p) Borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable; 

q) Investment of the Company’s funds including investments and loans to others; 

r) Form of balance sheet as prescribed under Part I, form of statement of profit and loss as prescribed under 

Part II and General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in Schedule VI to the Act; 

s) Directors’ report; 

t) Contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the Company; and 

u) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act. 

 

3) We further report that: 

a) The Hon'ble NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench, had earlier approved a Resolution Plan submitted by a Resolution 

Applicant on August 9, 2023. Pursuant to the approved plan, the previous directors vacated office and new 

directors were appointed. To ensure clarity on the shareholding structure, the Chairman of the Monitoring 

Committee filed an Interlocutory Application before the Hon’ble NCLT on November 1, 2023. The Hon’ble 

NCLT passed its final order on June 4, 2024, confirming the revised shareholding pattern of promoter and 

public shareholders. Accordingly, the allotment has been made in line with the approved Resolution Plan. 

 

b). The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 

took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

b)  Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 



Annual Report 2024-25 19 

 

 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

c) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of 

the minutes. 

 

d)  The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act; and 

 

e)  There was no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were imposed during the year under review under 

the Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depositories Act, Listing Agreement and Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed 

under these Acts against / on the Company, its Directors and Officers. 

 

f) No Other penalties were imposed during the year under review under the Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depositories 

Act, Listing Agreement and Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed under these Acts against / on the 

Company, its Directors and Officers. 

 

g) The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment, 

their being independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and 

Management Personnel. 

 

 

4) The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the 

Rules made under that Act, with regard to maintenance of minimum public shareholding. 

 

5) We further report that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 and the 

Byelaws framed there under by the Depositories with regard to dematerialization / re-materialization of 

securities and reconciliation of records of dematerialized securities with all securities issued by the Company. 

 

6) The Company has complied with the provisions of the FEMA, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made under 

that Act to the extent applicable. 

 

  However, it is noted that the Company has made export sales of Rs. 69.24 Lakhs to a party, the proceeds of 

which have not been realized within 9 months from the date of export. The Company has not applied to the 

Authorized Dealer (AD) Bank for an extension of the time limit for export realization. Non-realization of 

export proceeds within 9 months from the date of export of goods leads to non-compliance as per the Foreign 

Exchange Management (Export of Goods and Services) Regulations, 2015. 
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7) We further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate systems 

and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and 

ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

8) We further report that during the period under review, the company has made an allotment of 94,55,000 equity 

shares of ₹10 each to the Resolution Applicant as approved by the NCLT order. 

For, Swati Bhatt & Co. 

 

Place: Vadodara                                                                           Swati Bhatt 

Date: 05/09/2025                                                                              Partner 
Membership No.: F7323 

COP No: 8004 

PRC No.: 3568/2023 
UDIN: F007323G001181751 

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE A” and forms an integral 
part of this report. 
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“ANNEXURE A TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT” 

To,  

The Members, 

M/s. INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579 

1201, 1202, 1203 - GIDC Halol, 

Panchmahals, Halol, Gujarat – 389350. 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain responsible assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 

correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we follow provide 

a responsible basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 

company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

Place: Vadodara                                                                              Swati Bhatt 
Date: 05/09/2025                                                                              Partner 

Membership No.: F7323 

COP No: 8004 
PRC No.: 3568/2023 

UDIN: F007323G001181751 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

{Under Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V (E) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015} 

 
To, 

The Members of 

Innovative Tyres and Tubes Limited, 
1201-02-03, GIDC Halol-389350 

Dist Panchmahals. 

 

The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited (“the Company”), contains details as stipulated in 
regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”) with respect to Corporate 

Governance for the year ended March 31, 2025 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited (Herein after referred to as the “Stock Exchange”). 

 

Management’s Responsibility: 

The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation 
and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also 

responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, 

issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility: 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether for the year 

ended March 31, 2025 the Company has complied, with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

 

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

Opinion: 
In our opinion, based on our examination of the relevant records and to the best of our information and according to explanations given 

to us, and representations provided by the management, we certify that, the Company, has complied with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance as stipulated, in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations. 

 

Other Matters and Restriction on use: 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the Company to comply with 

the requirement of the Listing Regulations, for the year ended March 31, 2025, and it should not be used by any other person or for any 
other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to 

whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. 

 

For Swati Bhatt & Co. 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 05/09/2025 

                       

    Swati Yash Bhatt 

Partner 

Membership No.: F7323 

COP No: 8004 

PRC No.: 3568/2023 

UDIN: F007323G001163588  
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ANNEXURE – 2 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

In terms of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 the Management 

Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR) is structured as follows: 

 Industry structure and developments 

 Opportunities 

 Segment-wise or product-wise performance 

 Outlook 

 Threats, Risk and Concerns 

 Internal Control System 

 Financial and operational performance 

 Material Development in Human Resources 

Some Statements in this discussion may be forward looking. The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements can 

thus differ materially from those projected in any such forward-looking statements in the management discussion and analysis 

on account of various factors such as changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, impact of competition, etc. 

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and Processing of Automotive Tyres and Tubes. During 

the year under review the Company came out of CIRP process and started the production as well as Export. 

 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

The new management of the Company is well equipped with the vision to take Company towards high growth with optimum 

utilization of resources of the Company in proper manner.  New management is taking diligent efforts to boost the capacity 

utilization of the Company which remained underutilized in the past few years due to inadequate working capital. The Company is in 

the process of hiring qualified professionals to stimulate the vision of new management towards the Company. The Company is well 

placed to encash the opportunity in terms of ease of doing business and the relaxations provided by the government which will 

accelerate the business of the company in terms of revenue. 

The Company was in CIRP since near about 2 years and not been performing well in the past few years with respect to business 

operations due to tremendous financial pressure which led to inadequate working Capital. The new management of the Company is 

trying to streamline the business activities of the Company. The extent of impact on the future operational and financial performance 

of the Company will depend on the future developments, the impact of the CIRP on customers, vendors all of which are to be convinced 

by the time. 

 

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE 

Since, the company operates its business under one segment only the report on segment wise performance is not furnished. 

 

OUTLOOK 

The new management of the Company shall review the existing risk management policy and lay down defined risk management 

mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. Management is 

yet to set up exercises to be carried out to identify and evaluate, manage and monitor various risk. 

 

 

THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS 
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Key risks include input cost volatility, competitive pressure from domestic and global players, and cyclical demand shifts in 

the automobile sector. It will be essential to monitor regulatory changes, currency fluctuations, and evolving environmental 

standards as part of our risk mitigation framework 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

Innovative Tyres has in place robust internal control systems aligned with its scale and complexity. These systems safeguard 

assets, ensure the accuracy of financial records, and monitor regulatory compliance. The Audit Committee periodically reviews 

system adequacy and effectiveness. 

 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

The financial performance for the year reflected the challenges of rising input costs and competitive pressures. The 

management has focused on cost optimization, process improvements, and operational efficiencies. Going forward, emphasis 

will be placed on enhancing margins, strengthening customer relationships, and maintaining a healthy balance sheet. 

 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

The Company recognizes human capital as its most valuable asset. Continuous efforts are made to foster a culture of learning, 

collaboration, and performance orientation. Training programs, employee engagement initiatives, and talent retention 

measures are in place to build a motivated and skilled workforce. Industrial relations during the year remained cordial. 

 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E. CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED TO THE 

IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED 

EXPLANATIONS THEREFOR 

 

 

Particulars 31.03.202531.03.2024 % Variance Reason for variance

Current Ratio 0.02         0.07            -0.67              Refer Note 1

Debt-Equity Ratio -0.86        4.31            -1.20              Refer Note 2

Debt Service Coverage Ratio -3.41        -10.22        -0.67              Refer Note 3

Return on Equity Ratio -1.37        -1.54          -0.11              Refer Note 3

Inventory Turnover Ratio 2.06         2.48            -0.17              Refer Note 4

Trade Receivables turnover Ratio 5.58         6.49            -0.14              Refer Note 5

Trade Payable turnover Ratio 1.81         1.47            0.24               Refer Note 6

Net Capital Turnover Ratio -0.98        -1.12          -0.13              Refer Note 7

Net Profit Ratio (in percentage) -0.34        -1.14          -0.70              Refer Note 3

Return on Capital Employed (in percentage) 2.43         -1.04          -3.35              Refer Note 3

Return on Investment (in percentage) 0.00         0.04            -0.93              

Ratio Analysis
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01- Current assets significantly reduced because of operating losses during the year

02- Debt Equity ratio has increased because of increase in Debt and reduction in Shareholder fund (due to net losses)

03- Debt Service Coverage Ratio, Return on Equity Ratio, Net Profit ratio and Return on Capital employed negatively impacted 

     mainly due to huge loss in current year.

04-Sales declined by 97% as compared to decline in average inventory levels by 97%

05-Sales declined by 97% as compared to decline in Average Trade receivable by 50%

06-Purchases declined by 54% whereas Average trade payable increased by 4%

07-Working Capital has eroded significantly due to operating losses in current year. Hence Net Capital turnover ratio deteroriated.
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Annexure--5 

 

 

 

 

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES/ INITIATIVES 

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act & Rules made thereunder] 

 

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company strives to enhance its commitment across all levels to operate in 

an economically and socially sustainable manner. Recognizing the interests of all stakeholders, we undertake 

programs that directly or indirectly benefit society at large. Our CSR Policy complies with the provisions of 

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the associated rules, covering the following areas 

• Guiding principles for selection and implementation of CSR activities 

• Governance mechanism and formulation of the Annual Action Plan 

• Mode of implementation of CSR activities of the Company 

• Process for approval of CSR activities 

• Monitoring mechanism 

• Key focus areas for CSR activities 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

The composition of the CSR Committee during the financial year 2024-25 was as under: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of Director Designation/ Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of meetings 

of CSR Committee 

held during their 

tenure 

Number of meetings 

of CSR Committee 

attended 

1 NA NA NA NA 

 

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved 

by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.  

        The same is not applicable to the company in the current financial year 2024-25. 

4.  Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in 

pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable. 

The same is not applicable to the company in the current financial year 2024-25. 

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:(1601.66 Lacs) 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: (32.03 Lacs) 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NA 

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: NA 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]:  NA 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):  NA 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NA 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA 
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(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: NA 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

 

 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial 

Year (in ` 

lacs) 

Amount Unspent (in ` lacs) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

subsection (6) of section 135. 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub- 

section (5) of section 135. 

Amount. Date of 

transfer 

Name of the 

Fund 
Amount Date of 

transfer 

NA - - - - - 

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any: 

 

Sl. No. Particular 
Amount 

(in ` lacs) 

(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of 

section 135 
NA 

ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year NA 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] NA 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 

previous Financial Years, if any 

NA 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] NA 
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7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: 

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

S. 

No. 

Precedin

g 

Financia

l Year(s) 

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under 

subsection 

(6) of 

section 

135 (in ` 

lacs) 

Balance 

Amount 

in 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under 

subsectio

n 

(6) of 

section 135 

(in ` lacs) 

Amount 

Spent in 

the 

Financi

al Year 

(in ` lacs) 

Amount transferred to 

a Fund as specified 

under Schedule VII as 

per second proviso to 

subsection 

(5) of section 

135, if any 

Amount 

remainin

g to be 

spent in 

succeeding 

Financial 

Years 

(in ` lacs) 

Deficiency, 

if 

Any 

Amount 

(in ` 

lacs) 

Date 

of 

transfe

r 

1 2023-2024 - - - - - - - 

2 2022-2023 - - - - - - - 

3 2021-2022 - - - - - - - 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 

amount spent in the Financial Year:  No 

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired - Nil 

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 

amount spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Short particulars 

of the property or 

asset(s) [including 

complete address 

and location of the 

property] 

Pin code 

of the 

property 

or asset(s) 

Date 

of 

creati

on 

Amount of 

CSR 

amount 

spent (in ` 

lacs) 

Details of entity/ Authority/ 

beneficiary of the registered 

owner 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

CSR 

Registratio

n Number, 

if 

applicable 

Nam

e 

Register

ed 

Addres

s 

 Not Applicable 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per subsection 

(5) of section 135. 

Not Applicable. 
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10. It is certified that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and 

Policy of the Company. 

 

 

Munish Chawla 

Managing Director  

(DIN-06454015) 

Date: September 5, 2025 

  Place:   Halol                                                                                                   
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Annexure - 6 

THE DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT’ 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 (1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016 ARE AS UNDER: 

 

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial year; 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors/KMP Remuneration of 

Director/KMP for 

FY 2024-25 
(` In Lakhs) 

% Increase in 

Remuneration 

in the F.Y. 

2024-25 

Ratio of Remuneration of 

each Director/to median 

remuneration of 

employees 

Comparison of the 

remuneration of the 

KMP against the 

performance of the 

company 

1. Mr.Munish Chawla 

(Managing Director) 
        13.20 0.00% N.A Company incurred net 

loss before tax during the 

Reporting year 2024-25. 

2. Mr. Robin Chawla 

(Director & CFO) 
10.80 0.00% N.A  

3. Ms.Shweta Sharma 

(Company 

Secretary & 

compliance officer) 

4.56 0.00% N.A.  

The remuneration of KMP is as per the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in terms of Insolvency and 

bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

Total number of employees of the Company as on March 31, 2025 were 144. Out of these, 138 were male employees and 

remaining 6 were female employees. The Company has maintained peaceful and harmonious relations with all its employees. 

Transgender employees in the Company as on March 31, 2025 were NIL. 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Companies Act 2013 and other applicable provisions as may be 

applicable to Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 

 

FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

 

 

 

Munish Chawla 

Managing Director  

(DIN-06454015) 

Date: September 5, 2025 

  Place: Halol 
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Annexure-3 

STATEMENT ON IMPACT OF AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS (FOR AUDIT REPORT WITH MODIFIED OPINION) 

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 

31, 2025 [See Regulation 33/52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 

2016 

 

I Sr. No Particulars Audited Figures 

(as reported before 

adjusting 
for qualifications) 

` In Lacs 

Adjusted Figures 

(audited figures after 

adjusting for 

qualifications) 

 1 Turnover / Total income 4719.22 4719.22 

2 Total Expenditure 6320.92 6320.92 

3 Net Profit/(Loss) (1601.66) (1601.66)  

4 Earnings Per Share (16.02) (16.02) 

5 Total Assets 5515.21 5515.21 

6 Total Liabilities 7143.82 7143.82 

7 Net Worth (1628.61) (1628.61) 

8 Any other financial item(s) 

(as felt appropriate by the management) 

  

II Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately): 

 a. Details of 

Audit 

Qualification

: 

(a) The Company has accepted advances for the supply of goods from 13 parties 

amounts to Rs 49.27 Lakhs but such advance has not been appropriated against 
supply of goods within a period of three hundred and sixty-five days from the date 

of acceptance of such advances which is a contravention of Section 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

(b) The Company has reversed Input Tax Credit of Rs 28.98 lakhs in the books of 
accounts due to non-payment of creditors for more than 180 days.  However, the said 

GST input tax credit has not been reversed on the GST portal. To that extent, there 

exists a difference between the GST balance as per Books and GST balance as per 
GST portal 

(c) We have not been provided with Balance Confirmations of Major Debtors and 

Creditors. We have performed substantive procedures. However, Balances of 
Debtors and Creditors including Advances from customer and Advances to Suppliers 

are subject to reconciliation/ confirmation from parties 

(d) The Company has made export sales of Rs 69.24 Lacs to a Party which has not 

realized within 9 months of the date of export. The company has not applied to AD 
Bank for extension of the time limit of export realization. Non-realization of export 

proceeds within a period of 9 months from the date of export of goods leads to non-

compliance as per Regulation 9(1) of the Foreign Exchange Management (Export of 
Goods and Services) Regulations, 2015.   
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Company management informed that: 

The Advance from Customers were in the nature of dealer deposit. However, in 

absence of planned production including capital expansion the documents remained 

unexecuted during the year which will be executed in the current year on the 

achievement of its production capacity. The Company is taking active steps to realise 

outstanding export proceeds overdue from overseas customer. However, due to 

international world over instability, the money has stuck up. Further, the company had 

attempted to get the balance confirmation from vendors and customers however 

majority are still awaited. The company is doing best efforts to obtain. Regarding the 

reversal of GSTon GST portal, this is expected to be matched in this half year. 

 b. Type of Audit 

Qualification: 

Qualified Opinion / 

Disclaimer of 

Opinion / Adverse 

Opinion 

Qualified 

c. Frequency of 

qualification: Whether 

appeared first time / 

repetitive / since how 

long continuing 

Partly first time and partly repetitive. 

d. For Audit 

Qualification(s) where 

the impact is 

quantified by the auditor, 

Management’s Views: 

NA 

 

e. For Audit 

Qualification(s) where 

the impact is not 

quantified by the 

auditor: 

 

i. Management’s 

estimation on 

the impact of 

audit 

qualification 

NA 

ii If management 

is unable to 

estimate the 

impact, reasons 

for the same 

Impact is not ascertainable.   

iii Auditors’ 

Comments on (i) 

or (ii) above: 

Refer Basis of qualified opinion in audit report, the same is self-explanatory.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



Annual Report 2024-25 33 

 

 

 

 

III Signatories    

For Haribhakti & Co LLP.   

Kundan Kumar 
Mishra  Munish Chawla 

Chartered Accountants Director  

Independent 

Director 
Managing Director 

FRN: 103523W/W100048  DIN No.09325521 DIN No.06454015 

      
Yash N.BHATT    
M.no : 117745    

     Anand Gupta 

     

Chief Financial 

Officer 

      
      
Place: Vadodara   Place: Vadodara  

Date : 26th July 2025  

Date : 26th July 
2025  
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     Annexure - 4 

 

 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 
sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso 

thereto for the financial year 2024-25. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: 

    (Amount in Lacs) 

S. 

No. 

Particulars Details Details Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & 

nature of relationship 

Ten on Ten Rubtech 

Private Limited 

Munish Chawla 

(Director) 

Ten on Ten 

International Pvt. Ltd. 

b)  Nature of 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 

1.Loan Received 
2.Loan Repaid 

Loan Received 
Loan Repaid 

Purchase 

c)  Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 

 NA NA NA 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or 

arrangements or transaction 

including the value, if any 

NIL NIL NIL 

e)  Justification for entering into such 

contracts or arrangements or 

transactions’ 

NIL NIL NIL 

f)  Date of approval by the Board NA NA NA 

g)  Amount paid as advances, if any NIL NIL NIL 

h)  Date on which the special 

resolution was passed in General 

meeting as required under first 

proviso to section 188 

NA NA NA 

 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.  

 

 

S. 

No. 

Particulars Details Details Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related 

party & nature of 

relationship 

Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt. 
Ltd 

TOT Tyres Pvt Ltd Ten on Ten 
International Pvt. Ltd. 

b)  Nature of 

contracts/arrangements/tr

ansaction 

1. Sales 
2. Purchase 

 

1. Sales 

2. Purchase 

3. Job Work 

Income 

 

1. Sales 
2. Purchase 

3. Job Work 

Income 
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c)  Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/tr

ansaction 

Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing 

d)  Salient terms of the 

contracts or arrangements 

or transaction including 

the value, if any 

As per Terms & Conditions As per Terms & 

Conditions 

As per Terms & 

Conditions 

e)  Date(s) of approval by the 

Board, if any 

06-03-2024 06-03-2024 06-03-2024 

f)  Amount paid as advances, 

if any 

NIL NIL NIL 

 

S. 

No. 

Particulars Details Details Details Details Details Details 

g)  Name (s) of the 

related party & 

nature of 

relationship 

Munish 
Chawla 

Robin 
Chawla 

 

Shweta Sharma Roshni Chawla  Umesh 
Ved 

 

Jasmin 
Doshi 

h)  Nature of 

contracts/arrang

ements/transacti

on 

1. Remun

eration 

1. Remune

ration 

2. Loan 
received 

3. Repaid 

loan 

1. Remuneratio

n 

1 Sitting Fees 1 Sitting 

Fees 

1 Sitting 

Fees 

i)  Duration of the 

contracts/arrang

ements/transacti

on 

ongoing ongoing ongoing ongoing Ongoing ongoing 

j)  Salient terms of 

the contracts or 

arrangements or 

transaction 

including the 

value, if any 

As per 

Terms & 
Conditions 

As per 

Terms & 
Conditions 

As per Terms & 

Conditions 

As per Terms & 

Conditions 

As per 

Terms & 
Conditions 

As per 

Terms & 
Conditions 

k)  Date(s) of 

approval by the 

Board, if any 

________ ______ ________ ________ ________ ________ 

l)  Amount paid as 
advances, if any 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

FOR INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

 

 

 

Munish Chawla 

Managing Director  

(DIN-06454015) 

 



























STATEMENT ON IMPACT OF AUDIr OUALIFTCAT|ONS (FOR AUDTT REPORT WITH MOotFtE0 Opll{tON)
Statemont on lmpdct ol Audll Quallficatlons for thu Flnanclat Yaar entjed March?1,20?5

[Soe Rcgulatlon 33/52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regula(lons, 2016

I

Sr.

No.

Partlculars

Rr, ln Lacg Audlled
Flgurer (ar roported
before adJuetlng for

qualtflcatlone )

Rg, ln Lacc Adjurted
Flgur* (audllrd

flgurer aftcr adfusllng
lor qvallllcellonzl

1 urnover / Total incorne 4,715,22 4,715.?2
2 6,920.92 6,320.92
3 (1,601,66) (1,601.66

4 Per Share n (16.021 (16.tzt
5,515.21 5,515.21

6 'otal Liabilities 7,143.82 7,143,87

7 Worth (1,628.61) (1,628.61)

I Any othet financlal ilem(s) (as felt appropriate by the managemenl)
il a

a, Details of Audil Qualification: ta@ advances lor the supply ofgoods kom 13

parties amounls lo Rs 49,27 Lakhs but such adYance has not been

appropriated against supply of goods within a period of three hundred and

sixty-five days from the date of acceptance of such advances which is a
conkavenlion ot Section 73 of lhe Companles Act, 2013'

I(@ Tax Credit of Rs 28.98lakhs In lhe

lbooxs of accounts due to non-payment of creditors for more lhan 180 days.

lHowever, lhe said GST lnput tax credit has not been reversed on the GST

lportal, To that exlenl, lhcre exlsls a dit&.rence between lhe GST batance

fas 
per Eooks and GST balance as per GST porlal

Itc) wr have nol been provided with Balance Confirmations of Major

lDeblors and Creditors. We have performed subslantive procedures.

lHowever, Balances ol Debtors and Creditors including Adyances frsm

lcustomer and Advances to Suppliers are subjoct to reconciliatiory'

lconfi 
rmation from parliss

'1d; The Company has made export sales ol Rs 69.24 Lacs to a party which
has nol realizod wilhin I months ol the date of export. The company har
not applied to A0 Bank for extension of the time limit of exporl realizatjon
Non*ealizaton of export proceeds within a period of 9 rnonths from thr
date of exporl of goods leads to non.compliance as
the Foreign Exchange Managemenl (Export of
Regulations,20l5,

Company management lnlormed that:
The Advance hom Customers were ln lhe nature ol deater deposi[
Howevcr, in absence of planned production lncluding capital expansion the

ldocuments remained unexeculsd during the year which will be executed in
the currenl year on the achlevement of its production capacity. The
Company is tahing.active steps lo reallse oulstanding €xport proceeds
overdue from oversoas customer. Howover, due to international world over
inslqbilily, lhe money has stuck up. Fu(her. lhe company had attempted to
get lhe balance confirmatlon from vendors and customers howover majorily
are slill awalted, The company is doing besl effo(s lo obtaln. Regarding he
roversal of GST on GST portal, this ls expected to bo matched ln hh hall
yea(,

Typo of Audil Qualification: Qualilied

Opinlon / Disclalmer of Oplnlon /
Adverse Opinion

Qualified

Net Protr

lEarninos
S

I

I

I

I
I
I



c.

Frequency ol qualificalion: Whether
appeared fksl lime /repetitive / since
how long conlinuing

d.
For Audil Qualincalion(s) where lhe
impacl is quenliliod by the audilor,
Managemenl's Views:

NA

For Audit Ouali0cation(s) where lhe
impacl is not quantilied by the auditor:i.
(i) Managcnrenl's estimalion on the
impacl of audil qualilication

NA

(ii) lf rnanagement is unable to

estimate the impact, reasons for the
samo

lnrpact is nol ascorlainable,

e.

iiiAuditors' Commenls on (i) or (ii)
above:

Refer Basis 6f qualilied opinion in audil reporl, lhe same is sel[explonalory,

lll Slgnatorles

For Haribhakti & Co LLP.

Chartered Accountants Direclor
FRN; 103523WW100048

Yash N.BHAfi

July 2025

Kumar Mishra Munlsh

lnclopondont Diroctor

0lN N0,09325521

Manoglng Oireclor

OIN No"06a54015

.d,u
,aGa

Chiof Flnancial 0lliser

Placo; Vadodarn
Dnlo :26th Jrrly2025

partly First lime and partly Repelitive

1



(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Note No
As at 31st 

March, 2025
As at 31st 

March, 2024

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholder's Funds
     (a) Share Capital A 1,000.00      1,799.16     
     (b) Reserves & Surplus B (2,628.61)     (2,771.61)    
     (c) Share Application Money Pending Allotment -               950.00        

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
     (a) Long-term borrowings C 3,439.50      1,862.46     
     (b) Deferred tax liabilities -               -              
     (c) Other Long term liabilities D 682.85         -              
     (d) Long term provisions E 6.60             0.75            

(3) Current Liabilities
     (a) Short-term borrowings F 840.50         1,618.59     
     (b) Trade payables G

(i) Due to Micro & Small enterprises 946.32         447.95        
(ii) Others 360.07         119.60        

     (c) Other current liabilities H 854.32         181.73        
     (d) Short-term provisions I 13.67           4.27            

Total 5,515.21      4,212.89     

II. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
     (a) Property, Plant & Equipments and Intangible Assets
          (i) Property, Plant & Equipments J 3,176.10      3,580.65     
          (ii) Capital work-in-progress 950.55         24.67          
          (iii) Intangible assets -               -              
     (b) Non-current investments K 1.08             1.08            
     (c) Deferred Tax Assets L 2.73             2.73            
     (d) Other Non Current Assets M 222.69         193.22        

(2) Current assets
     (a) Inventories N 631.87         288.97        
     (b) Trade receivables O 280.89         66.83          
     (c) Cash and cash equivalents P 16.31           9.21            
     (d) Short-term loans and advances Q 27.91           10.96          
     (e) Other Current Assets R 205.06         34.56          

Total 5,515.21      4,212.89     

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statements ZA

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Company
For Haribhakti & Co LLP.
Chartered Accountants
F R No.  103523W/W100048 Munish Chawla Robin Chawla

Managing Director Director
DIN No.06454015 DIN No.10277507

Yash Bhatt
Partner
M. No. 117745 Anand Gupta Shweta Sharma
Date : 26th July 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED
CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579

REGD. OFFICE: 1201,1202,1203-GIDC, Halol-389350, Panchmahal, Gujarat, India

website: www.innovativetyres.com Email: investors@innovativetyres.co.in Tel: 02676-220621

 Balance Sheet



(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars
Note 
No

Year ended 31st 
March, 2025

Year ended 31st 
March, 2024

I. Revenue from operations S 4,679.25             1,417.79                   

II. Other Income T 39.97                  820.33                      

III. Total Income (I +II) 4,719.22             2,238.12                   
IV. Expenses:
    Cost of materials, consumed U 4,045.48             1,303.57                   
    Purchases of Stock In Trade V 213.26                55.60                        
    Changes in inventories of Finished Goods W (289.40)               (44.68)                      
    and Work in progress
    Employee benefits expense X 340.01                123.33                      
    Financial costs Y 92.36                  2.11                          
    Depreciation and amortisation expense J 406.77                442.41                      
    Other expenses Z 1,512.45             735.47                      

V. Total Expenses 6,320.92             2,617.79                   

VI. Profit/(Loss) before Extra-ordinary item & Tax (1,601.70)            (379.67)                    

    Exceptional item(Income) -                      3,826.63                   

VII. Profit/(Loss) before tax (1,601.70)            3,446.96                   

VIII. Tax expense:
    Current Tax -                      -                           

Deferred Tax -                      (2.73)                        
Provision of Income Tax  (Earlier years) (0.04)                   -                           
Current Tax Expense -                      -                           

IX. Profit/(Loss) for the period (1,601.66)            3,449.69                   

X. Earning per equity share: (FV Rs. 10/- each)
  (Refer item No. 8 of Note ZA)
    - Basic (16.02)               19.17                     
    - Diluted (16.02)               19.17                     

Notes forming Part of the Accounts ZA

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Company
For Haribhakti & Co LLP.
Chartered Accountants
F R No.  103523W/W100048 Munish Chawla Robin Chawla

Managing Director Director
DIN No.06454015 DIN No.10277507

Yash Bhatt
Partner
M. No. 117745 Shweta Sharma
Date : 26th July 2025 Company Secretary

Anand Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Profit and Loss

INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED

website: www.innovativetyres.com Email: investors@innovativetyres.co.in Tel: 02676-220621

CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579

REGD. OFFICE: 1201,1202,1203-GIDC, Halol-389350, Panchmahal, Gujarat, India



(Rs. in Lacs)

Sr. No. Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

1) Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit before taxation (1,601.70)                   3,446.96                         

Adjustment for:

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (8.81)                          -                                  

Depreciation 406.77                       442.41                            

Impairment loss/(gain) -                             (797.11)                           

Extra ordinary item- reversalof liabilities -                             (3,826.63)                        

Provision for gratuity 15.25                          5.01                                

Interest Received (5.33)                          (4.51)                               

Sundry balance write off/(write back) -                             (0.14)                               

Interest and finance charges 92.36                          2.11                                

Operating profit before working capital changes (1,101.47)                   (731.90)                           

(Increase)/Decrease in 

    Inventories (342.89)                      (288.91)                           

    Trade Receivables (214.07)                      (56.44)                             

    Short Term Loans and Advances (16.95)                        (8.00)                               

    Other current assets (170.50)                      14.99                              

    Other Non Current Assets (29.47)                        (22.45)                             

Increase/ (Decrease) in  

    Trade payables 738.85                       575.83                            

    Other current liabilities 672.59                       (224.73)                           

Cash generated from operations (463.91)                      (741.61)                           

Income taxes and other taxes (net of refunds) 0.04                            -                                  
Net cash from Operating Activities - A (463.88)                      (741.61)                           

2) Cash flow from Investment Activities

Purchase of fixed assets (905.23)                      (5.60)                               

Interest received 5.33                            4.51                                

Advance against Capital Assets 682.85                       

Sale of Fixed Assets (14.06)                        -                                  
Net cash from Investment Activity – B (231.11)                      (1.09)                               

3) Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Net Proceeding(payment) from Secured borrowings (778.09)                      (2,182.11)                        

Unsecured loan taken 1,577.04                    1,862.46                         

Proceeds from Share issue &  premium from promoters (4.50)                          950.00                            

Interest and finance charges paid (92.36)                        (2.11)                               

Net cash from Financing Activities  - C 702.09                       628.25                            

Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 7.10                            (114.44)                           
Cash and cash equivalents as on 1st April, 2024 9.21                            123.65                            
Cash and cash equivalents as on 31st March 2025 16.31                          9.21                                

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Company
For Haribhakti & Co LLP.

Chartered Accountants

F R No.  103523W/W100048 Munish Chawla Robin Chawla

Managing Director Director

DIN No.06454015 DIN No.10277507

Yash Bhatt

Partner

M. No. 117745 Anand Gupta Shweta Sharma

Date : 26th July 2025
Chief Financial 
Officer Company Secretary

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31st March 2025

CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579

REGD. OFFICE: 1201,1202,1203-GIDC, Halol-389350, Panchmahal, Gujarat, India

website: www.innovativetyres.com Email: investors@innovativetyres.co.in Tel: 02676-220621

INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED



Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Rs. in Lacs)

As At As At
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

A. Share Capital :

(a) Shares authorized :

         1,90,00,000 Equity shares of  Rs.10/- each 1,900.00           1,900.00           

Total 1,900.00           1,900.00           

(b) Shares issued, subscribed and fully paid :

         1,00,00,000 1,000.00           1,799.16           

Total 1,000.00           1,799.16           

No. of shares No. of shares 
Authorised Equity Share Capital
 At the beginning of the year 1,90,00,000 1,90,00,000
 Closing Balance at the end of the year 1,90,00,000 1,90,00,000

 Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Equity Shares 
 At the beginning of the year 1,79,91,561 1,79,91,561
 Closing Balance at the end of the year 1,00,00,000 1,79,91,561

(d) The rights, preferences and restrictions attached to capital :

The company is having only one class of shares i.e. Equity carrying a nominal value of Rs.10/- per share.

(e) Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares specifying
the number of shares held :

(i) Equity Shares 31st March 2024
Numbers % held Numbers % held

*1 Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd 94,55,000             94.55             
2 Pradeep R Kothari 16,95,676         9.42                  
3 Maxim Gold Development Limited 16,37,731         9.10                  

(f) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

S No Name of Promoter

No. of Equity 
Shares

% of total 
shares

% change 
during the year

No. of Equity 
Shares

% of total 
shares

% change 
during the year

*1 M/s Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd 94,55,000             94.55% 100.00%
2 Mr. Pradeep Kothari -                        0.00% -100.00% 16,95,676         9.42% 0.00%
3 Mr. Mukesh Desai -                        0.00% -100.00% 6,99,562           3.89% 0.00%

Total 94,55,000             94.55% 23,95,238         13.31%

* Refer item No. 1(Q) of Note ZA -Accounting Policies.

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

(Previous year 1,90,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)

(Previous year 1,79,91,561 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)

31st March 2025

 (c) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period : 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

 Every holder of the equity share of the Company is entitled to one vote per share held. All other rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares are as per provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013. 



Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited

Notes to Financial Statements 
(Rs. in Lacs)

As At As At
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

B. Reserves and Surplus :
   
(a) Securities Premium A/c
Balance as per the last financial statements 3,625.74    3,625.74         

3,625.74    3,625.74         
(b) Revaluation Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements 728.49       728.49            

(c) Capital Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements
Add : Amount transferred during the year 1,744.66    

(c) Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per the last financial statements (7,125.84)   (10,575.53)      
Add : Amount transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss (1,601.66)   3,449.69         

Total (8,727.50)   (7,125.84)        

Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss (8,727.50)   (7,125.84)        

Total Reserves and Surplus    (2,628.61)         (2,771.61)

Share Application Money

Application Money received from Resolution Applicant( Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd) -             950.00            

Total                -                950.00 

* Refer item No. 1(Q) of Note ZA -Accounting Policies.

C. Long-term borrowings :

Secured:

            Term Loan From Banks

                       Corporate Loan from ICICI Bank Limited 1,671.43    

(Interest Payable @ICICI-MCLR-1Y + 'Spread' per annum, subject to minimum 
of ICICI-MCLR-1Y plus applicable statutory levy, if any. Presently the ICICI-
MCLR-1Y is 9.10% and Spread is 0.15%. Totalling to 9.25% p.a.(previous year 
NIL p.a.) Repayable in 84 monthly instalments commencing from first 
instalment in Oct 2024 and  last instalment will be  payable in Sep 2031.)

Corporate loan from ICICI Bank secured by exclusive charge over
1.current assets, 
2. movable fixed assets 
3. immovable fixed assets situated at plot no. 1201,1202 and 1203, GIDC Halol 
Panchmahal.(The title deeds of these immovable fixed assets are kept with 
ICICI Bank Limited as a part of mortgage process.)

(Secured by Corporate Guarantee of M/s Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd(Holding 
Company) and M/s Ten on Ten International Pvt. Ltd)

(Secured by Personal Guarantee of Mr. Munish Chawla and Mr. Robin Chawla.)

Less: Current Maturities     (257.14)                  -   

Total      1,414.29                     -   

            Long Term maturities of Finance lease Obligations

                       Vehicle Lease Finances -             5.84                
Less: Current Maturities              -               (5.84)
Secured by:
(hypothecation charge on respective Vehicles)

Total                -                       -   

Un Secured:

            Loans from Related Parties 2,025.21    1,862.46         

Total      2,025.21           1,862.46 

Total Term Loans      3,439.50           1,862.46 



Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Rs. in Lacs)

As At As At
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

    Advance for capital assets 682.85            -                 

Total 682.85            -                 

E. Long Term Provisions :

    Provision for employee benefits
       Provision for Leave benefits 6.60                0.75                

Total 6.60                0.75                

F. Short-term borrowings :

            From Banks

SBI NCLT Dues Payable -                 1,571.15         

IDBI Current Account -                 6.15                

 Current Maturities of Long term borrowings
 i) Term Loan from banks 257.14            -                 
 ii) Finance lease obligations(Vehicle Finance) -                 5.84                

Bank Overdraft
Overdraft from ICICI Bank 583.36            
Overdraft from IDBI Bank 35.45              
1. Overdraft from ICICI Bank secured by exclusive charge over
i.current assets, 
ii. movable fixed assets 
iii. immovable fixed assets situated at plot no. 1201,1202 and 1203, GIDC
Halol Panchmahal.
2.Secured by Corporate Guarantee of M/s Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt
Ltd(Holding Company) and M/s Ten on Ten International Pvt. Ltd.
3. Secured by Personal Guarantee of Mr. Munish Chawla and Mr. Robin
Chawla.
4. Interest Payable @ICICI-MCLR-6M + 'Spread' per annum, subject to 
minimum of ICICI-MCLR-6M plus applicable statutory levy , if any. Presently 
the ICICI-MCLR-6M is 9.00% and Spread is 0.25%. Totalling to 9.25% 
p.a.(previous year NIL p.a.) 
5. Quarterly stock statements are not required to be filed by the company 
with its Bankers.
(Previous year Overdraft from IDBI Bank was Secured by Hypothecation of
Fixed Deposits of Rs 1000 lakhs of M/s Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd)

Total             840.50          1,618.59 

G. Trade Payable :

            For supplies/services

 a) Due to Micro & Small enterprises             946.32             447.95 
 b) Others 360.07            119.60            

Total 1,306.40         567.55            

H. Other current liabilities :
(a) Statutory Dues (Liabilities)
       - PF, ESI, Prof. Tax & Others 4.12                1.73                
       - VAT, CST, GST & CENVAT etc -                 3.38                
       - TDS & TCS 4.68                1.48                

(b) Staff payables (including CIRP)** 53.42              30.62              
(c) Advance from Customers (including CIRP)** 418.51            112.32            
(d) Creditors for Capital Goods 348.18            1.72                
(e) Other Current Liabilities 4.41                9.48                
(f) Trade Deposits 21.00              21.00              

Total 854.32            181.73            

** Refer item 16 of Note ZA

D. Other Long Term Liabilities :



Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Rs. in Lacs)
As At As At

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

I. Short-term provisions :

Provision for employee benefits

       Provision for Leave benefits 0.65         -          
       Provision for Bonus 13.02       4.27         

Total 13.67       4.27         



Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited
Notes to Financial Statements 

J. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS :
(Rs. in Lacs)

As on Additions Deductions / As on As on Addition Deduction Impairment As on As on As on

ASSETS
01.04.2024 Adjustments 31.03.2025 01.04.2024 Adjustments

31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(i) TANGIBLE

Lease hold Land 780.66       -               -                  780.66       -             -             -                  -                -             780.66       780.66        
Plant & Equipment 12,048.14  3.21             25.56              12,025.79  9,648.28    356.05       22.87              -                9,981.46    2,044.33    2,399.86     
Electrical Installation 246.22       -               -                  246.22       201.82       23.39         -                  -                225.21       21.01         44.40           
Laboratory Equipments 43.61         -               -                  43.61         39.14         0.26           -                  -                39.39         4.21           4.47             
Building 660.49       -               -                  660.49       332.80       20.94         -                  -                353.74       306.75       327.69        
Furniture & Fixtures 22.61         -               -                  22.61         21.32         0.04           -                  -                21.37         1.24           1.28             
Office Equipments 51.82         1.48             -                  53.30         46.13         1.28           -                  -                47.41         5.89           5.69             
Vehicles 36.77         -               -                  36.77         20.81         4.37           -                  -                25.18         11.59         15.96           
Computer & Peripherals 24.35         0.22             -                  24.57         23.72         0.44           -                  -                24.16         0.40           0.63             
Total A 13,914.66  4.91             25.56              13,894.01  10,334.02  406.77       22.87              -                10,717.92  3,176.10    3,580.64     

(ii) INTANGIBLE
Intangible Assets -             -               -                  -             -             -             -                  -                -             -             -              
Intangible Assets 136.19       -               -                  136.19       136.19       -             -                  -                136.19       -             -              
Technical Knowhow 1.71           -               -                  1.71           1.71           -             -                  -                1.71           -             -              
Total B 137.90       -               -                  137.90       137.90       -             -                  -                137.90       -             -              

(iii) Capital work-in-progress
Capital WIP 24.67         925.88         -                  950.55       -             -             -                  -                -             950.55       24.67           

Total C 24.67         925.88         -                  950.55       -             -             -                  -                -             950.55       24.67           
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 14,077.23  930.79         25.56              14,982.46  10,471.92  406.77       22.87              -                10,855.82  4,126.66    3,605.31     
Previous Year 14,071.63  5.60             -                  14,077.23  10,826.62  442.41       -                  (797.11)         10,471.92  3,605.32    3,245.01     

Sub Notes:
1. Ageing Schedule of Capital WIP as on 31st March, 2025 Rs. in Lakhs

Less than 
1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years

More than 
3 years

Project in Process 925.88       -               -                  24.67         950.55       
Project temporarily suspended -             -             

Ageing Schedule of Capital WIP as on 31st March, 2024 Rs. in Lakhs

Less than 
1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years

More than 
3 years

Project in Process -             -               -                  -             
Project temporarily suspended -             24.67         24.67         

The Disclosure as per AS-28 "Impairment of Assets" is as under:
a) The Amount of Impairment Loss recognised in statement of Profit & Loss Account is Rs NIL(Previous year Rs.9.23 Lacs.)
b) The Amount of reversal of Impairment Loss in statement of Profit & Loss Account is Rs NIL(Previous year Rs 806.34 lakhs).
c) The Amount of impairment loss recognised directly against revaluation surplus during the year is Nil (Previous year Nil).
d) The Amount of reversal of impairment loss recognised directly in revaluation surplus during the year is Nil (Previous year Nil).
e) Recoverable Amount of the Asset is its net selling pricing estimated based on independent valuation reports.
f) the class of Property, Plant and Equipment impaired and its impairment amount is shown in above table. (Note J)

GROSS BLOCK AT COST DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

2. Land was revalued during F.Y. 2016-17 (effective date is 31-03-2017) based on independent valuers Report. The cost of land is Rs. 52.17 lakhs and it was valued as per prevailing market 

3. Based on independent Valuation reports under AS-28, the Company had made impairment assessment of its Cash Generating Unit viz. Property, Plant and Equipment during the year 
2023-24 resulting in net reversal of impairment loss claimed in previous years.

Outstanding for following periods from due date
Total

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date

Total

Particulars



Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited

Notes to Financial Statements 
(Rs. in Lacs)

As At As At
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

K. Non-Current Investments (At Cost) :

Trade Investments  :

Quoted Equity Instruments

Others
1,100 (Previous year- 1,100) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully 0.26                0.26                
paid up in Indian Overseas Bank. 

Unquoted Equity Instruments

Associate*
7500 (Previous year- 7500) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully 0.75                0.75                
paid up in Halol Industries Environment & Infrastructure Ltd. Halol

Others
140 (Previous year- 140) equity shares of Rs.50/- each fully 0.07                0.07                
paid up in The Halol Mercantile Co Operative bank Ltd. Halol

                1.08                 1.08 

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments                 0.82                 0.82 
Aggregate book value of quoted investments                 0.26                 0.26 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 0.43                0.66                

* Refer to item No. 1 ( c) of Note ZA

L. Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets 2.73                2.73                

Total 2.73                2.73                

M. Other Non Current Assets

Income tax Assets (MAT Credit) 125.66            125.66            
Security Deposit 78.62              45.11              
Balance with Gratuity trust Account with LIC (net of gratuity liability) 18.40              22.45              

Total 222.69            193.22            

N. Inventories *
(a) Raw materials 297.79            244.29            
(b) Work-in-progress 59.41              16.00              
(c) Finished goods 274.66            28.68              

Total 631.87            288.97            

* Refer item No. 1(D) of Note ZA -Accounting Policies for basis of Valuation.



Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Rs. in Lacs)

As At As At
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

O. Trade Receivables (Unsecured) :

(a) Over Six months from the due date
       Considered good 69.28   -  
       Considered doubtful -       -  
       Less : Provision for doubtful debts -       69.28        -  -                 

(b) Others Considered good 211.61      66.83             

Total 280.89      Total 66.83             

P. Cash & Cash Equivalents :

(a) Cash & Cash equivalents :
(i) Balances with Bank in Current Accounts 4.17          2.58               
(ii) Cash on hand 3.21          1.98               

(b) Other Bank Balance :
  - in Deposit Accounts with Bank having Maturity Period 8.94          4.65               

upto 12 months

Total 16.31        Total 9.21               

Q. Short-Term Loans and Advances (Unsecured, considered good) :

(a) Advance given to Trade Creditors 25.79        10.56             
(b) Advance Given to Employees 2.11          0.40               

Total 27.91        Total 10.96             

R. Other Current Assets:

(a) Balance with Government Authorities 169.55      17.78             
(b) Advance Recoverable in cash or in kind 12.68        9.27               
(c) Accrued Income 4.15          2.61               
(d) Income Tax assets (net of provisions) 18.68        4.90               

Total 205.06      Total 34.56             

 ( Held as Margin Money against bank Guarantee) 



Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited

Notes to Financial Statements 

S. Revenue from :

a Sale of products
 - Domestic 3,544.96 1,295.03  
 - Exports 709.92    -          

4,254.88  1,295.03     
b Other Operating Revenues

 - Disposal Sales 57.21      45.56       
 - Export Incentives 1.17        -          
 - Service Income (Export) 7.05         
 - Service Income (Domestic) 366.00    70.16       

424.38     122.76        

Revenue from Operations 4,679.25  1,417.79     

T. Other Income :

Interest Income 
From Banks 0.49        1.52         
From Others 4.85        2.99         

Lease Rental Income 15.40      16.80       
Impairment Loss/Reversal -          797.11     
Sundry Balance written back -          0.14         
Provision no longer required -          1.78         
Profit on Sales of Fixed Assets 8.81        -          
Exchange Fluctuation Gain (Net) 10.42      -          

39.97       820.33        

Total 39.97       820.33        

U. Cost of Raw Material Consumed :

Inventory at the beginning of the year 244.29     0.06            
Add : Purchases 4,098.97  1,547.81     

4,343.27  1,547.87     
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 297.79     244.29        

4,045.48  1,303.57     

V. Purchase of Stock In Trade :

Purchase of Finished Goods 213.26     55.60          

Total 213.26     55.60          

W. Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress:

Inventory at the end of the year
        Work in Process 59.41      16.00       
        Finished Goods 274.66    28.68       

334.08     44.68          

Inventory at the beginning of the year
        Work in Process 16.00      -          
        Finished Goods 28.68      -          

44.68       -              

Total (289.40)   (44.68)         

31.03.2025
Year Ended

(Rs. in Lacs)

31.03.2024
Year Ended



Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited

Notes to Financial Statements 

31.03.2025
Year Ended

(Rs. in Lacs)

31.03.2024
Year Ended

X. Employee benefits expense:

Salaries, Wages & Bonus (Refer note below) 306.25     114.28        
Retirement benefits 10.55       0.53            
Contribution to Provident and other funds 23.21       8.52            
Staff welfare expense 0.00         -              

Total 340.01     123.33        

(Note: Salary, Wages & Bonus includes Directors' Remuneration Rs. 24.00 Lakhs ( PY Rs. 2.00 Lakhs)

Y. Finance Cost :

Interest on Working Capital 17.57       2.03            
Other Interest 74.79       0.07            

Total 92.36       2.11            

Z. Other Expenses :

Stores, Spares & Consumables 94.45       32.63          
Conversion charges 25.10       -              
Labour Charges 78.08       13.83          
Repairs and Maintenance
        Buildings -          9.52         
       Plant & Machinery 61.40      68.47       
        Computers -          0.17         
        Others -          61.40       -          78.16          
        Vehicle Maintenance 1.72         0.06            
Freight and Forwarding Charges 126.88     16.90          
Power & Fuel 993.74     482.16        
Water Charges 22.49       13.87          
Other manufacturing expenses 12.41       5.27            
Selling & Distribution Expenses 20.97       0.75            
Rates and Taxes 1.20         0.62            
Insurance 13.61       11.45          
Statutory Compliance Expenses 30.35       52.30          
Payment to Auditor
         Audit Fees 2.80        3.00         
         Certification Fees 0.18        -          
         Reimbursement of expenses 0.45        3.43         -          3.00            
Directors' Sitting fees 1.55         1.95            
Prior Period Expenses 0.68         -              
Bank Charges 5.38         0.72            
Office & Other Expenses 19.03       21.77          

Total 1,512.45  735.47        



INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED

NOTE: ZA

Notes forming part of Accounts:
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

(A) Basis of Accounting:

(B) Property, Plant and Equipment:

(C) Investments :

(D) Inventories:

(E) Revenue from Operations:

ii) Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accounted on entitlement basis.
iii) Service Income is recognised on completion of job work and are shown net of claims.

(F) Foreign Currency Transactions :

(G) Employee Benefits: 

ii) Work in Progress goods has been identified as such depending upon stage of completion of finished goods
technically determined by the management. Work in Progress goods are valued at raw materials cost as
calculated above including appropriate proportion of cost of conversion to the extent of stage of progress or net
realisable value , whichever is less and certified by the management.

iii) Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Finished goods are valued at cost of
production, including appropriate proportion of allocable cost.

iv) Scrap is valued at net Realisable Value.

i) Sale of products are recognised when risk and rewards of ownership of the products are passed on to the
customers, which is generally on dispatch of goods. Sales are net of Sales return and Goods & Service Tax.

i) Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

ii) Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining unsettled at the end of the year
are translated at year end rates.

iii) The difference in translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realized gains and losses on foreign
exchange transactions are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

(a)  Short term employee benefits
All employee Benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefits. Benefits such as Salaries, wages, and short term compensated absences etc. is recognised in
the period in which the employee renders the related service.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025

Financial statements have been prepared by the management of the company in consultation with the Resolution
Professional of the Company. The financial statements are prepared as per historical cost convention and on
going concern basis and comply with the applicable accounting standards specified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules 2014.

i) Property, Plant and Equipments are recorded at cost of acquisition / construction less accumulated depreciation
& impairment loss, if any, except for land which has been shown at revalued amount. Cost comprises of the
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, but
excluding GST credit availed.

ii) In respect of fixed assets (other than capital work-in-progress) acquired during the year, depreciation is charged
on a Straight Line Basis so as to write off the cost of the assets over the useful lives. In respect of fixed assets
acquired prior to April 1, 2014, the carrying amount as on April 1, 2014 is depreciated over the remaining useful
life. The useful life of the fixed assets has been adopted as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

(i) Investments are Long-term, unless stated otherwise and are stated at cost except where there is diminution in 
value other than temporary, in which case a provision is made to the carrying value to recognise the diminution.

ii) In accordance with Accounting Standard – 23 ‘ Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company is required to
furnish Consolidated Financial Statements along with the accounts of M/s Halol Industries Environment &
Infrastructure Ltd. where the shareholding of the company is more than 20% as at Balance Sheet date. 

However, considering the long term restrictions imposed by M/s Halol Industries Environment & Infrastructure Ltd. 
on transfer of equity shares as well as the restriction on declarations on dividend, the company falls within the 
exemptions as stipulated in the AS-23. Consequently the Company is not required to prepare Consolidated 
Financial Statements. Therefore, the Company has not prepared Consolidated Financial Statement which is in line 
within AS-23.

All Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

i) Raw materials, Packing materials, Stores and consumables are valued using First -in-First Out method. The
cost of Raw materials, stores and consumables includes cost of purchases after adjusting for GST, direct
expenses and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.



(H) Borrowing Cost:

(I) Earnings per share : 

(J) Taxes on Income:

(K) Segment Reporting :

(L) Impairment of  Assets :

(M) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

(N) Use of Estimates

i) Provision for taxation is made on the basis of the estimated taxable income for the current Accounting period in
accordance with provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

ii) The benefit of credit against the payment made towards MAT for the earlier years is available in accordance
with the provisions of section 115J (AA) of income tax act 1961 over a period of subsequent 15 assessment years
and it is recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability in view of the certainty involved of its realisation against
reversal of deferred tax liability.

(b)  Post Employment Benefits:
i.   Defined Contribution Plans :

Define contribution plans are post employment benefit plans under which the company pays fixed contributions
into separate entities (fund) or to financial institutions or state managed benefit schemes. The Company operates
defined contribution plans pertaining to Provident Fund, Employees state Insurance, Pension Fund Scheme for
eligible employees. The Company contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised in the profit and loss
account in the financial year to which they relate.

ii.  Defined Benefit Plans:
The gratuity liabilities are funded partly with the Life Insurance Corporation of India with a recognized fund, which

is administered by the trustees. The Company provides for gratuity liability payable on retirement on the basis of
Actuarial Valuation as at the year end and the same is charged to profit and loss account under head Employees
Cost.  
The Company provides for accumulated leave liability payable on retirement on the basis of Actuarial Valuation as
at the year end and the same is charged to profit and loss account under head Employees Cost.  

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of
the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue. 

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for
the year, by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. (Including diluted potential
equity shares in case of diluted EPS)

iii) In accordance with Accounting Standard – 22 ‘ Accounting for Taxes on Income’, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the Deferred Tax for timing differences between the book profit and tax profit for
the year is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as of the 

iv) Deferred tax assets arising from temporary timing differences are recognised to the extent there is reasonable
certainty that the assets will be realized in future. In situations, where the company has un absorbed depreciation
and carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidences, that the same can be realised against future taxable profits.

There is no separate reportable primary segment as per Accounting Standards 17, as most of the operations are
related to only one Segment viz. Tyres & Tubes.

A Property, Plant and Equipment is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable
value. An Impairment Loss is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The Impairment Loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimate of recoverable amount.

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. Contingent liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only
by the future events not wholly within the control of the company or (ii) Present obligations arising from past events
where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can not be made. Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of Assets and Liabilities (including Contingent Liabilities) as of the date of the
financial statements and the reported income and expenses during the reported period. The Management believes
that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results
could, however, differ from these estimates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in
the period in which the results are known/ materialised



(O) Government grants

(P) Leases
Operating lease 

Finance Lease

(Q)

2

3 Contingent Liabilities : (Rs. in Lakhs)
Sr.No. 2024-25 2023-24

i) 48.58             -                 
ii) 36.84             -                 

4 Defined benefit plans / compensated absences -

2024-25 2023-24
Gratuity Gratuity 

1. Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 
Current Service Cost 5.51               2.45               
Interest Cost (1.55)              -                 

An application was filed for the initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Section 9 of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”) against Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited (“the Company”)
before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (“NCLT”), with a prayer to commence the
CIRP. The Hon'ble NCLT vide its order dated 28th March 2022 admitted the said application for initiation of CIRP
against the Company. Further, the Hon’ble NCLT gave orders for the appointment of Mr. Abhishek Nagori as the
Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) to perform all the functions as per the IBC and that the management of the
Company shall vest in the IRP. The NCLT order also provided for a moratorium with effect from 28th March 2022
till the completion of the CIRP under the IBC, or until the Hon’ble NCLT approves the resolution plan or passes an
order for liquidation of the company, whichever is earlier. Further, In the ongoing CIRP of the Corporate Debtor,
the Resolution Professional (RP) with the approval of Committee of Creditors (CoC) invited the Expression of
Interest (EOI) in Form G on 31.10.2022 from the Potential Resolution Applicants (PRAs) to submit the Resolution
Plan. Thereafter, the RP has received Resolution Plans from the Resolution Applicants. Subsequently, the CoC
has approved the Resolution Plan submitted by Resolution Applicant in the 12th meeting held on 31.12.2022 and
the said Resolution Plan has also been submitted to the honourable NCLT for approval. Further, In the ongoing
CIRP of the Corporate Debtor, the Resolution Plan submitted on 31-12-2022 by M/s Ten on Ten Rubtech Private
Limited was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 09.08.2023. Accordingly, the Company has come out
from the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). Therefore, as per the order of Hon’ble NCLT, a
Monitoring Committee has been constituted on 16-08-2023 to monitor the implementation of Approved resolution
Plan and progress thereof. 

Government grants are recognised:
  (a)where there is reasonable assurance that the company will comply with the conditions attached to them and 

  (b)where such benefits have been earned by the company and ultimate collection is reasonably certain.

Payments are recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum lease rentals is capitalised as Fixed 
Assets with corresponding amount disclosed as lease liability. The principal component in the lease rental is 
adjusted against the lease liability and the interest component is charged to Profit and Loss Statement.

Capital & Other Commitment 

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for (net of advances) Rs.
800 lacs. (Previous year for Rs. NIL).

Particulars
Export Obligation under Advance Licences

As per the Honourable NCLT’s order dated 9th August, 2023, the promoter’s shareholding was stated as
35,06,104 (representing 19.49%) equity shares and public shareholding as 1,44,85,457(representing 80.51%)
equity share of Rs. 10/- each respectively whereas the actual shareholding on 9th August 2023, the promoter’s
shareholding was 25,19,104 (representing 14.00%) equity shares and public shareholding was 1,54,72,457
(representing 86.00%) equity share of Rs. 10/- each respectively. This discrepancy was because one of the
promoters group has sold 9,87,000 (representing 5.49%) during CIRP period. Because of this discrepancy, the
Company could not cancel promoter’s shareholding and reduce public shareholding to 5,10,000 equity shares as
per the NCLT Order.

Considering above situation an Interlocutory Application was filed by the Chairman of Monitoring Committee
appointed for implementation of the Resolution Plan, before Honourable NCLT, Ahmedabad on dated 1st
November, 2023 for modifying the stipulation of cancellation of equity share capital of promoter shareholders and
reduction of equity share capital of the public shareholders which was rejected hence again a separate
interlocutory application was filed on 8th March 2024 and the application was approved by the Honourable NCLT,
Ahmedabad on 04th June 2024. Thereby the company has made allotment of 94,55,000 equity shares to the
promoter M/s Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd., and extinguished old promoters’ 25,19,104 equity shares and the
remaining 1,54,72,457 shares were reduced to 5,45,000 equity shares in the ratio of 3.52:100 as mentioned in the
Honourable NCLT, Ahmedabad Order dated 04th June, 2024.

As per the Honourable NCLT’s order dated 09-08-2023, the company was required to make payment to creditors
as per implementation schedule. The Company has made the payments due as per the of implementation
schedule of the Resolution Plan. However, an amount of Rs. 4.71 lacs Could not be paid to creditor and
employees for want of their banking details. This amount has remained deposited with special account maintained
by the Resolution Applicant M/s Ten on Ten Pvt Ltd. Subsequent to that the amount has been kept as Fixed
deposit by the resolution applicant as per the decision of the monitoring committee.

The new shares were subsequently listed on 02 Dec 2024 at National Stock Exchange SME Platform and trading 
was also commenced.

Inadmissible Input Tax Credit



Employee Contributions -                 
Expected return on plan assets
Net Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 0.09               
Past Service Cost -                   

Settlement Cost -                 
Total expense 4.05               2.45               

2. Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 
8.33               2.45               

Fair value of plan assets 25.78             23.94             
Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)] 17.44             21.49             
Net asset / (liability) 17.44             21.49             

3. Change in Obligation during the Year ended
2.45               200.42           

Current Service Cost 5.51               2.45               
Interest Cost 0.11               
Settlement Cost -                 
Past Service Cost -                 
Employee Contributions -                 
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 0.27               (41.19)            
Benefits Payments (159.23)          

8.33               2.45               
4. Change in Assets during the Year 
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 23.94             22.24             
Assets acquired in amalgamation in previous year -                 
Settlements -                 
Expected return on plan assets 1.65               
Contributions by Employer -                 
Actual benefits paid -                 
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) 0.18               1.71               
Plan assets at the end of the year 25.78             23.94             
Actual return on plan assets 1.84               1.71               

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.72% 7.20%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.72% 7.20%

Mortality rate

 Indian 
Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-

14) Urban 

 Indian 
Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-

14) Urban 

Withdrawal rate

5% for all 
service groups

5% for all 
service groups

Medical premium inflation NA NA
Annual Increment in Salary cost 5% 5%

The above information has been certified by the actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

The net of provision for unfunded leave encashment liability up to 31, March 2025 is Rs. 7.24 lacs (P.Y. 2.19 lacs)

5 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

As per requirement of Section 22 of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 following information
is disclosed to the extent identifiable: (Rs. in Lacs)

2024-25 2023-2024
a)

946.32                       447.95 
(ii)    The interest due on above -                 -                 
       Total of (i) & (ii) above 946.32            447.95            

b)

-                 -                 
c)

-                 -                 
d)

-                 -                 
e)

-                 -                 

(i) The Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounting
year

Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Act along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during
each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the Act.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of Act.

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as micro and small
enterprises on the basis of information available with the company.

Present value of  Net Defined Benefit Obligation 

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year

 The estimate of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.  



6 Segment Reporting :
a) Primary Segment:

The Company has identified "Tyres & Tubes" as the only primary reportable segment.

b) Secondary Segment (By Geographical Segment) 
Rs. in Lacs

2024-25 2023-24
3,544.96        1,295.03        

709.92           -                 
4,254.88        1,295.03        

In view of the inter-woven / inter-mixed nature of business and manufacturing facility, other secondary
segmental information is not ascertainable.

7 Disclosure as required by the Accounting Standard - AS-18 relating to "Related Parties Disclosure" issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are as follows :

Name of related parties and description of relationship
Key Management Personnel and Relatives of KMP :

Mr. Munish Chawla Managing Director (w.e.f. 09-08-2023)
Mr. Robin Chawla Director (w.e.f. 09-08-2023), Director & CFO (w.e.f. 10-11-2023 upto 14-07-2025)
Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla Director (w.e.f. 09-08-2023 upto 27-09-2024)
Mrs. Roshni Chawla Director (w.e.f. 10-11-2023 upto 14-07-2025)
Mr. Umesh Ved Independent Director (w.e.f. 10-11-2023 upto 07-06-2025)
Mrs. Jasmin Doshi Independent Director (w.e.f. 10-11-2023 upto 10-06-2025)
Mr. Kundan Kumar Mishra Independent Director (w.e.f. 15-07-2025)
Ms. Sneh Chauhan Independent Director (w.e.f. 15-07-2025)
Mr. Anand Gupta Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 15-07-2025)
Mrs. Shweta Sharma Compliance Officer & Company Secretary (w.e.f. 10-11-2023)

Related Parties:
Associate Companies: Halol Industries Environment & Infrastructure Limited

Other Related Parties: Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd
TOT Tyres Pvt Ltd
Ten on Ten International P Ltd

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
1  Remuneration

Mr. Munish Chawla -                         13.20             1.10               
Mr. Robin Chawla -                         10.80             0.90               
Mrs. Shweta Sharma -                         4.56               1.79               

2 Purchase of Goods

Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd 361.62                             196.01                   
TOT Tyres Pvt Ltd 116.86                             22.78                     
Ten on Ten International P Ltd 533.40                             

3 Job Work Purchase

Ten on Ten International P Ltd 29.12                               

4 Loan Received

Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd 2,329.90                          1,089.69                
Mr. Munish Chawla 1,618.37        1,273.64        
Mr. Robin Chawla 10.83             713.75           

   Mrs. Roshni Chawla 13.50             

5 Job Work Income

TOT Tyres Pvt Ltd 431.88                             82.31                     

6 Share Application Money Received
Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd 950.00                   

7 Repayment of Loan

Mr. Munish Chawla 1,231.15        232.85           
Mr. Robin Chawla 96.00             44.88             
Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd 2,446.19                          

8 Sales of Goods
Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd 129.12                             1.56                       
TOT Tyres Pvt Ltd 64.89                               204.43                   
Ten on Ten International P Ltd 406.01                             

9 Sitting Fess

Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla 1.40               
Mrs. Roshni Chawla 0.15               0.05               

   Mr. Umesh Ved 0.70               0.25               
   Mrs. Jasmin Doshi 0.70               0.25               

Particulars
India
Outside India (including Deemed exports)
Total Sales

Related parties KMP and relatives



Outstanding Balances
10 Creditors / Other Payable

Directors Remuneration 19.42                               2.00                       
KMP Remuneration 0.38               0.38               
Sitting Fee Payable 1.71                                 1.76                       
Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd -                                   11.70                     

11 Loan Payable

Ten on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd -                                   139.30                   
Mr. Munish Chawla 1,428.01        1,040.79        
Mr. Robin Chawla 583.70           668.87           

   Mrs. Roshni Chawla 13.50             13.50             

12 Debtors / Other Receivable

TOT Tyres Pvt Ltd 38.99                               31.90                     
Ten on Ten International P Ltd 2.21                                 

13 Investment in Associate
Halol Industries Environment & 
Infrastructure Ltd., 0.75                                 0.75                       



8 Earning Per Share:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024

Earning per share has been computed as under:

a Profit after Taxation & before extra ordinary items (1,601.66)       3,449.69        

b Total Ordinary shares
1,00,00,000   1,79,91,561   

1,00,00,000   1,79,91,561   
c Earning per Share (Face value Rs.10/- per share) (in Rs.)

(Basic) (16.02)            19.17             
(Diluted) (16.02)            19.17             

9 Information required under Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 as certified by Management.

(Rs. in Lacs)
2024-25 2023-24

A Value of imports calculated on C.I.F. basis made by  the Company during the year :
(i)   Raw Materials ( including High Sea Purchases) 808.65           
(ii)  Capital goods

B  Expenditure in foreign currency :
(i)   Foreign Exhibition expenses 17.79             
(ii)  Testing Charges 2.55               
(iii)  Subscription Charges
(ii)  Foreign Bank Charges 1.32               

C Value of imported raw materials, spare parts, 682.36           
Components and Packing materials consumed during the year. -                 

Value of indigenous raw materials, spare parts, 3,363.12        
Components and packing materials consumed during the year 94.45             

Percentage to total consumption :
(a)    Imported raw materials, spare parts, components
        and packing materials consumed. 16.48% 0.00%
(b)    Indigenous raw materials, spare parts, components
        and packing materials consumed. 83.52% 0.00%

D Earnings in Foreign Exchange (On accrual basis)
Export Sales (On FOB Basis) 709.92           -                 

10 Ageing of Trade Payable
As on 31st March 2025 Rs. Lakhs

Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years
 More than 3 
years 

(i) MSME 928.38                             17.95                     946.32             
(ii) Others 360.07                             360.07             
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME -                   
(iv) Disputed dues-Others -                   
Total 1,288.45                          17.95                     -                 -                 1,306.40          

As on 31st March 2024 Rs. Lakhs

Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years
 More than 3 
years 

(i) MSME 447.95                             447.95             
(ii) Others 119.60                             119.60             
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME -                   
(iv) Disputed dues-Others -                   
Total 567.55                             -                         -                 -                 567.55             

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding (including potential 
Equity Shares)

Total

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total



11 Ageing of Trade Receivable

As on 31st March 2025 Rs. Lakhs

Less than 6 months 6 months to 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years
 More than 3 
years 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
considered good 211.61                             69.28                     -                 -                 -                   280.89            

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
considered doubtful -                                   -                         -                 -                 -                   -                  
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables- 
considered good -                                   -                         -                 -                 -                   -                  

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- 
considered doubtful -                                   -                         -                 -                 -                   -                  
Total 211.61                             69.28                     -                 -                 280.89            

As on 31st March 2024 Rs. Lakhs

Less than 6 months
 6 months to 1 
year 1-2 Years 2-3 years

 More than 3 
years 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
considered good 66.83                               -                         -                 -                 -                   66.83              
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
considered doubtful -                                   -                         -                 -                 -                   -                  

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables- 
considered good -                                   -                         -                 -                 -                   -                  
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- 
considered doubtful -                                   -                         -                 -                 -                   -                  

Total 66.83                               -                         -                 -                 -                   66.83              

12 Ratio Analysis

Particulars  Numerator  Denominator 31.03.2025 31-03-2024 % Variance
Reason for 

variance
Current Ratio (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.39               0.17               122.72% Refer Note 1

Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt
Shareholder's 
Equity (2.63)              (72.10)            -96.35% Refer Note 2

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in 
times)

Earning available for debt 
service Debt Service (0.56)              2.01               -128.02% Refer Note 3

Return on Equity Ratio (in times) Net profit
Average 
shareholders equity 1.94               (1.55)              -224.99% Refer Note 4

Inventory Turnover Ratio (in 
times) Sales Average inventory 10.16             9.81               3.59%
Trade Receivables turnover Ratio 
(in times) Sales

Average Trade 
receivables 26.91             36.72             -26.71% Refer Note 5

Trade Payable turnover Ratio (in 
times) Purchases

Average Trade 
payable 4.48               0.92               384.61% Refer Note 6

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in 
times) Net Sales Working Capital (2.45)              (0.29)              747.98% Refer Note 7
Net Profit Ratio (in percentage) Net Profit Net Sales (0.34)              2.43               -114.07% Refer Note 4
Return on Capital Employed (in 
percentage)

Earning before interest & 
taxes Capital employed (0.57)              (0.11)              -421.47% Refer Note 4

Return on Investment (in 
percentage)

Earning before interest & 
taxes Total Assets 0.07               0.34               -78.68% Refer Note 8

1 Current assets significantly improved because of operating performance during the year
2 Debt Equity ratio has reduced because of increase in Debt and reduction in Shareholder fund (due to net losses)
3 Debt service coverage ratio decreased mainly due to huge loss in current year
4 Return on Equity ratio has been increased due to reorganisation of share capital in current year.
5 Sales increased by 2.30 times as compared to increase in Average Trade receivable by 4.20 times
6 Purchases increased by 2.65 times whereas Average trade payable increased by 2.30 times
7 Working Capital has eroded significantly due to operating losses in current year. Hence Net Capital turnover ratio deteriorated.
8 Previous year Huge FDs kept during CIRP Period

Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Particulars



13 Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is consistently incurring losses. In accordance with section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company is not
required to spend expenditure under the Corporate Social Responsibility.  

14

15

16

Rs. in Lacs
31-03-2025 31-03-2024

-                         1.38               1.53               
0.79               0.91               
1.36               1.45               
0.91               0.96               

-                         0.27               0.06               
-                         4.71               4.91               
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As per our report of even date 
For Haribhakti & Co LLP.
Chartered Accountants
F R No.  103523W/W100048 Munish Chawla Robin Chawla

Managing Director Director
DIN No.06454015 DIN No.10277507

Yash Bhatt
Partner
M. No. 117745 Anand Gupta Shweta Sharma
Date : 26th July 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

The company as per the resolution passed in its Annual General meeting held on 23-09-2024 approved the sales/lease or otherwise
disposal of its Tubes division. Accordingly the company has made agreement with M/s S S Tyres and Tubes Pvt Limited for sale of its tubes
division at a price of Rs. 703.00 lakhs. Of which an amount of Rs. 682.85 lakhs has been received and appearing as long term advances

received.

To the best of our knowledge and information available to us, the company has not entered any transaction with companies struck off under 
section 248 of Companies Act 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act 1956.

The Company is engaged in the business of Tyre & Tubes and therefore, there is only one reportable segment in accordance with the  
Accounting Standard  on  Segment Reporting (AS-17). 

In the Opinion of the Board, the Current Assets / Non Current Assets, Loans & Advances (including Export Benefits / Incentive, Trade 
Payables are approximately of the value stated, if realized / paid in the ordinary course of business and are subject to confirmation / 
reconciliation.

The third party payments made / received on behalf of the Company as well as payment to third parties on behalf of suppliers by the 
Company are subject to confirmations from respective parties.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification / 
disclosure.

Amount payable as per Resolution Plan

Particulars
Staff Payable- Salary
Staff Payable- Bonus
Staff Payable- Leave Salary
Staff Payable- Gratuity
Advance from customers-foreign
TOTAL

The amount due, payable and remained unpaid as on 31st March 2025 is Rs. 4.71 lakhs which could not be paid for want of banking details
of old employees and foreign customer. This amount was deposited by the Successful Resolution Applicant i.e. M/s Ten on Ten Rubtech
Pvt Ltd into special account opened by it specially for this purpose only. Thereafter the resolution applicant has deposited the amount by
way of fixed deposit as per the directions in the monitoring committee.

During the year the company has made reorganisation of share capital and allotted fresh equity to the resolution application as per the 
Honourable NCLT's Order dated 09-08-2023 and dated 04-06-2024
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